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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino-Life
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
include particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

Review

| am pleased to present the results of Sino-Life Group Limited
(“Sino-Life” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (“Year
2015") on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”).

Over the past year, taking advantage of our solid business
platform, we continued to extend our coverage actively, and
enhance our corporate image and brand visibility. We remain
committed to taking us to a higher level of professional and high-
quality services. Our efforts in a wide array of horizons were
paying off with promising results.

On 8 December 2015, the Board has resolved to change the
application of the remaining net proceeds of approximately
RMB$29.9 million to (i) approximately RMB18.2 million will be
used as the consideration for the acquisition (the “Acquisition”)
of the entire interest of the total aggregate capital of Bu Lao Lin
Limited (N ZMBEHBBR A F]) (“BLL"); and (i) approximately
RMB11.7 million will be spent on expansion of the business into
the market on the golden-ager and elderly care (including but not
limited to acquisition of related property, plant and equipment,
acquisition of equity interest of company in related business and
formation of joint ventures and projects with strategic partners).
Since the negotiation regarding to the agency agreement to sell
cubicles and space for urns storage in the columbarium with the
new owner is still a stalemate and the plans for the purchase
of funeral service equipment and facilities have been delayed.
In the meantime, the golden-ager industry, which also enables
vertical expansion of the Group’s existing business, will bring huge
business opportunities to the Group. After reviewing the surplus
of the remaining net proceeds of the placing, the Board considers
that the above change in the use of proceeds will facilitate
efficient allocation of financial resources of the Company and
strengthen the future development of the Group and is fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Group as a whole.
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Chairman’s Statement
T EHE

The past year was a challenging year for the Group. For the Year
2015, the Group's revenue amounted to approximately RMB61.6
million (2014: approximately RMB69.6 million). In particular,
approximately 93.8%, approximately 3.8%, approximately 1.2%
and approximately 1.3% of the turnover was derived from the
PRC market, the Taiwan market, the Hong Kong market and the
Vietnam market respectively. The drop of revenue was mainly due
to the decrease in revenue of the Group’s funeral services business
in Chongging, the PRC due to the termination of the operation of
Chonggqing Zhong County Funeral Parlour ( EE ™ B B AFEEE)
during November 2014. However, gross profit margin increased
to approximately 57.2% for Year 2015 (2014: approximately
52.8%) due to the increase in the average spending per service
provided on the Group’s funeral services business in Chongging.
In addition, both selling expenses and administrative expenses
decreased as a result of continuing efforts on the cost control.
With these factors, loss attributable to shareholders for the Year
2015 was approximately RMB9.4 million (2014: approximately
RMB11.1 million).

Prospects

The crucial focus of our development will rest in large part on the
PRC, Hong Kong and Vietnam, which is exceptionally going to be
a stronghold for reaping huge revenue to the Group in the coming
year. The Group’s management will continue to effectively raise
our business goal in different areas to a new high by adhering
to its unique, professional business model. Our management will
keep close eyes on other regions blessed with immense potential
and myriad opportunities as well, so as to extend our business
reach.

On 8 December 2015, the Group entered a Contract to acquire
the entire interest of the total aggregate capital of BLL, a company
established in Taiwan, which business scope includes provision
of elderly housing service; provision of leisure activities venues;
retail sale of information software; and so on. The Acquisition is
expected to complete on or before 31 March 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement

BLL is the beneficial owner of a piece of freehold land located
in Neimen District, Kaohsiung, Taiwan with an area of 4,929
square metres and also owned a search report on strategic
planning for golden-ager industry. By acquiring BLL enables the
Group to develop the business for the golden-ager and further
penetrate the elderly care business market which leads to a vertical
expansion of the Group’s existing business.

In connection with the newly added operations bases in past and
future years, we expect that these bases are starting to reward
us with profit contribution in 2016 upon their investment period.
What is more, we will also strengthen cost control. Building
on the Group's strategically well-established layout of business
development, and backed by an abundant pool of funds, our
management is confident to bring long-term returns and create
substantial value for shareholders.

I would like to express heartfelt thanks to banks and investors for
their support and trust on behalf of the Board of Directors. | would
also like to take this opportunity to thank our management and
staff for their efforts over the past year and their contribution to
the Group's success in business operations.

Chairman
Liu Tien-Tsai

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR [E T M AT

Business Review

The PRC

Funeral business in the PRC continues to be the driving force of
the Group's operations. The Group's revenue derived from funeral
business in the PRC market for the Year 2015 was approximately
RMB57.8 million, representing a decrease of about 9.1%
compared to last year and accounted for about 93.8% of the
Group’s turnover.

Hong Kong

The Group's funeral business in the Hong Kong market generated
an approximate revenue of RMBO0.7 million for the Year 2015
representing a decrease of about 60.7% compared to last year
and accounted for approximately 1.2% of the Group's revenue.

Taiwan
The Group’s revenue derived from funeral business in the Taiwan
market for the Year 2015 was approximately RMB2.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.7% compared to
last year and accounted for approximately 3.8% of the Group's
revenue.

Vietnam

The Group’s revenue derived from the sales of cemeteries in
Vietnam was approximately RMB0.8 million for the Year 2015
representing a decrease of approximately 57.0% compared to last
year and accounted for 1.3% of the Group’s revenue.

Prospects

On 8 December 2015, Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd.
("Bau Shan"), a direct subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the Contract (the “S&P Contract”) for Sale and Purchase of entire
interest of the total aggregate capital (the “Sale Equity”) of BLL,
a company established in Taiwan, pursuant to which Bau Shan
has agreed to purchase the Sale Equity, representing entire the
equity interest in the BLL (the “Acquisition”), at a consideration
of approximately RMB18.2 million (equivalent to NT$92.0 million).
The completion date of the Acquisition should be on or before 31
March 2016.

The scope of business of BLL includes provision of elderly
housing service; provision of leisure activities venues; retail sale of
information software; and so on. BLL is the beneficial owner of
a piece of freehold land located in Neimen District, Kaohsiung,
Taiwan with an area of 4,929 square metres. BLL also owned
a search report on strategic planning for golden-ager industry.
The Acquisition enables the Group to develop the business for
the golden-ager and further penetrate the elderly care business
market which leads to a vertical expansion of the Group’s existing
business.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 8 December 2015, the Board has also resolved to change
the application of the remaining net proceeds of approximately
RMB$29.9 million to (i) approximately RMB18.2 million will be
used as the consideration for the Acquisition; and approximately
RMB11.7 million will be spent on expansion of the business into
the market on the golden-ager and elderly care (including but not
limited to acquisition of related property, plant and equipment,
acquisition of equity interest of company in related business and
formation of joint ventures and projects with strategic partners).
After reviewing the golden-ager industry will enable vertical
expansion of the Group's existing business and also bring huge
business opportunities to the Group, the Board considers that
the above change in the use of proceeds will facilitate efficient
allocation of financial resources of the Company and strengthen
the future development of the Group and is fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

Financial review

Revenue

The revenue arising from principal activities for the year ended
31 December 2015 was approximately RMB61.6 million (2014:
approximately RMB69.6 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 11.5% as compared to 2014. Regarding to the
funeral services business provided in the PRC during the year, the
revenue was approximately RMB57.8 million (2014: approximately
RMB63.5 million), representing a decrease of approximately
9.1% which accounted for 93.8% of the Group's revenue (2014:
91.3%). The revenue generated by the funeral services business
provided in Taiwan was approximately RMB2.3 million (2014:
approximately RMB2.4 million), or 3.8% of the Group's revenue,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.7%. The revenue
generated by the funeral services business provided in Hong
Kong was approximately RMBO0.7 million (2014: approximately
RMB1.9 million), or 1.2% of the Group’s revenue, representing
a decrease of approximately 60.7%. The revenue generated by
sales of cemeteries in Vietnam was approximately RMBO0.8 million,
or 1.3% of the Group’s revenue, representing a decrease of
approximately 57.0%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR [E T M AT

The revenue from the funeral service provided in funeral parlour
and funeral service centres under the Group’s management
decreased by 5.8%, amounting to approximately RMB45.0 million
(2014: approximately RMB47.8 million). The drop was mainly due
to the decrease in the number of funeral services provided from
2,383 t0 2,211 for the Year 2015 owing to the termination of the
operation of Chongging Zhong County Funeral Parlour ( EEE 1
SZ7E(&5E ) in November 2014. However, the average spending per
service provided increased to from approximately RMB20,065 to
approximately RMB20,374 for the Year 2015.

The revenue from the cremation services increased by
1.6%, amounting to approximately RMB12.7 million (2014:
approximately RMB12.5 million). The increase was due to the
slightly increase in the number of cremation services provided
and the average spending per service provided from 8,920 to
8,889 for the Year 2015 and from approximately RMB1,411 to
approximately RMB1,428 for the Year 2015 respectively. Under the
funeral parlour management agreement and funeral service centre
management agreements, the Group is entitled to all income
and responsible for all liabilities and all expenses incurred in the
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management.

The revenue generated from funeral arrangement services
provided in Taiwan and Hong Kong was approximately RMB2.3
million and RMBO0.7 million respectively (2014: approximately
RMB2.4 million and RMB1.9 million respectively), representing a
decrease of 2.8% and 60.7% respectively over last year.

The revenue generated from sales of burial plots and tombstones
was approximately RMBO0.8 million (2014: RMB1.8 million).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit decreased by 4.2% to approximately RMB35.2
million (2014: approximately RMB36.8 million), and gross profit
margin increased to approximately 57.2% (2014: approximately
52.8%). The gross profit margin of funeral services provided in
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management increased to approximately 56.6% (2014:
approximately 53.8%) which was mainly due to the increase in
the average spending per funeral service provided. The gross
profit margin of cremation services increased to approximately
71.0% (2014: approximately 62.2%) which was mainly due to the
increase in the average spending per service provided and that of
funeral arrangement services decreased to approximately 3.9%
(2014: approximately 13.1%) due to the decrease in the number
of services provided which raised the cost sharing for each service.
The gross profit margin of sales of burial plots and tomestone was
approximately 77.6% (2014: approximately 79.9%).

The Group's cost of sales primarily consists of costs directly
attributable to the provision of its services, which mainly include (i)
direct labour for the funeral services provided by individuals during
the funeral ceremony held in a funeral parlour or a funeral service
centre managed by the Group; (i) subcontracting charges for
services provided by the subcontractors in Taiwan; (iii) commission
expenses from the recognition of commission paid to sales agents
for funeral services deeds at the point when the services of the
funeral services deeds are provided; (iv) the management fee and
operating lease charges for hire of funeral parlours and funeral
service centres, and (iv) materials used for funeral ceremonies and
cremation services such as fresh flowers, fuel for the cremation
furnace and cost of the goods sold in the funeral parlour and
funeral service centres under the Group’s management in the PRC.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling expenses decreased by approximately 16.9% to
approximately RMB5.8 million (2014: approximately RMB7.0
million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the commission expenses as the drop of the revenue. The
proportion of selling expenses to revenue was approximately 9.4%
(2014: approximately 10.0%). Administrative expenses decreased
by 4.0% to approximately RMB35.5 million (2014: approximately
RMB37.0 million) as a result of continuing the efforts in cost
control of staff cost, entertainment expenses and rental expenses.
The proportion of administrative expenses to revenue was
approximately 57.6% (2014: approximately 53.1%). Finance costs
remained nearly the same of approximately RMBO.3 million (2014:
approximately RMBO0.4 million). Income tax expense increased by
approximately 324.0% to approximately RMB2.6 million (2014:
approximately RMBO.6 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR [E T M AT

Loss for the Year

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year 2015
was approximately RMB9.4 million (2014: approximately RMB11.1
million). The decrease in loss for the Year 2015 was mainly due
to the net effect of (i) decrease in the gross profit; (i) increase in
other revenue and other net gain/(loss) as there was an increase in
interest income and exchange gain (iii) decrease in other operating
expenses.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at 31
December 2015, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB98.7 million (2014: approximately RMB109.1
million) and bank and other loans of approximately RMB7.6
million (2014: approximately RMB8.1 million). All bank and other
loans were denominated in New Taiwan Dollars, at prevailing
market interest. During the year, the Group did not use any
financial instruments for hedging purposes. The gearing ratio
representing the ratio of total borrowing to the total assets of the
Group was 2.8% as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 2.8%).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

During the year, the Group’s major operations were geographically
based in the PRC, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam. The revenue
derived from Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam accounted for
approximately 6.2% (2014: approximately 8.7%) of the total
revenue. Its financial statements are presented in Renminbi,
while a significant portion of the revenue and expenses are
denominated in the United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong
Kong Dollar and Vietnamese dong. It is possible that the value of
Renminbi may fluctuate in value against that of the United States
Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Vietnamese
dong. The Group's operating results and financial condition may
be affected by changes in the exchange rates of Renminbi against
the United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar
and Vietnamese dong, in which the Group’s revenue and expenses
are denominated. As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not
have any bank liabilities, foreign exchange contracts, interest or
currency swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purpose.
Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any material interest and
exchange risks.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Significant Acquisitions and Disposal of
Investments

On 8 December 2015, Bau Shan entered into the S&P Contract
for Sale and Purchase of entire interest of the Sale Equity of BLL,
a company established in Taiwan, pursuant to which Bau Shan
has agreed to purchase the Sale Equity, representing entire the
equity interest in the BLL, at a Consideration of NT$92.0 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB18.2 million). The completion
date of the Acquisition should be on or before 31 March 2016.

Saved as above, the Group did not have any significant acquisition
or disposal of investment for the Year 2015.

The Number and Remuneration of
Employees

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed approximately 225
employees (2014: 278 employees). The Group determines staff
remuneration in accordance with prevailing market salary scales,
individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration packages
including performance bonuses and entitlements to share options
are reviewed on regular basis.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and bank deposits pledged as security for the
Group’s bank borrowings were approximately RMB17.0 million
(2014: RMB17.5 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2014: Nil).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2015, capital expenditure
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB3.5 million (2014: approximately RMB4.1
million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements
amounting to approximately RMB8.9 million (2014: approximately
RMB6.5 million).
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and
financial management risks.

The key business and operations risk exposure by the Group are
summarized as follows:

(i) Slow down of the economy and customer spending;
(i)  Deterioration of market competition;

(i) Increasing life expectancy and decline in the number of
deceased persons;

(iv)  Non-compliance with any relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC by the owners of funeral parlour and funeral service
centres in the PRC, and;

(v)  Reliance on qualified and skilled employees as the business
operations of the Group are service-oriented,;

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group
are shown in note 32 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

Environmental policy and performance

The Group emphasises on environmental conservation. Although
the Group does not establish a formal environmental policy,
various measures have been implemented to encourage
compliance with environmental legislation and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. It implements
green office practices such as double-sided printing and copying,
promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy consumption
by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliances. To
conserve the environment, the Company encourages staff to
maintain electronic records in order to reduce paper consumption.
The Group will review its environmental practices periodically and
will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Laws and regulations of our business

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group. During Year 2015, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

Relationship with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group establishes good working relationship with employees.
The quality of the employer-employee relationship affects each
employee’s morale, productivity and ultimately, the Company's
profitability. Each employee’s ideal work environment varies and
the expectations include a relationship that is mutually respect,
encourages open communication and is free of hostile working
conditions. Certain employees have worked for the Group for over
15 years.

The Group has built a solid track record for providing reliable
and cost competitive funeral services and has a good reputation
with the customers. The Group has also conducted survey of
customers’ opinion on its services with regard to the types of
services which had been provided to the customers and their
comments on the quality of the services provided.

The Group puts strong emphasis on the reliability of suppliers
to meet the needs of our customers. The Group’s practice to
make prompt payment to suppliers benefited the Group from
negotiating a better price and maintaining long term relation with
the suppliers.

During Year 2015, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B [E & M AT

Comparison of Business Objectives With
Actual Business Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as stated in
the Prospectus with the Group's actual business progress for
the period from 9 September 2009 (the “Listing Date”) to 31
December 2015 is set out below:

REEREARARRERRELR

BRERMLXFEFREAREE -_ZTAH
FAAANBLETEHREE T —AF
TZA=+T—HISREREBERLBN
DR TX:

Business objectives for the period
from the Listing Date to

31 December 2015 as stated

in the Prospectus
BEEEFEALHHME
—E-AF+_-_A=+—HI1KH®
EBER

Actual business progress up to
31 December 2015

BE_Z-1F+-A=+—HMA
HEREERR

Expand funeral services network in other
major cities by entering into funeral-
services agreement
FIREI L BERE W ®E BARMER
YT RO 7B R AR TS 4R

Develop business in columbarium in
Taiwan

BEAEERALH

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015

The Group has implemented two memoranda of understanding
(the “MOU") disclosed in the “Future Plan and Prospects”
section of the Prospectus.

AEEETHRER [RRFAERATR] — S EBENE AR
DR =8 ([ E=ER]) -

The Group is in the process of negotiating the terms with the
owners of remaining funeral parlours and new funeral service
centres.

AEECERERBERIABEREHOES NERGK-

The Group has also signed two other new subcontracting
agreements during 2010.
REER-_ZE-—ZFANNREEITMORINTD B IHE-

As disclosed in the announcement by the Company on 5 January
2011, the register for the owner of the columbarium was
changed. At present, the new owner is still negotiating with Bau
Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (B 1L AR DB
72 ®]) (“Bau Shan"), the direct subsidiary of the Company, as
to the continuance of the agency agreement to sell cubicles and
space for urn storage in the columbarium (the “Products”) in
Miaoli County in Taiwan or the sale of the columbarium (and the
Products) to Bau Shan.

WA RBRN T ——F—AABTBZ AMGRAEE &k
ZHEBACEEEL B FHBEATLEARTEEMNER
AELEBREROBRAT (B ER ETERTEE
REHBEALERSEERENBENELRERA ([ZEE
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Business objectives for the period
from the Listing Date to

31 December 2015 as stated

in the Prospectus

B & o M AT

Actual business progress up to
31 December 2015

BREEMEE EHAME
—E-AF+-A=+—HILEM®H BE—_Z—AF+ZA=+—HA
EBEHE EREBRR
3. Purchase of funeral service equipment The Group is conducting the feasibility study on advanced
and facilities equipment and facilities designated for funeral.

BEAERGE RS MR

4. Refurbishment of new and existing
service centres

KEHEERREORBEH L

5. Expansion of marketing network
mEMISEE

RE B IEHETT R TR B M R A S R MR RO AT T T 55

The Group has finished the decoration and improvement of
funeral parlours and services centres under its managements.

AEERBEEBZED TREERAEREERRBET O -

The Group has finished the establishment of the website and
organised and sponsored a forum and research on the funeral
industry.

REE TR Mt AR ER —EERBEE  WER
A/E -

As disclosed in the announcement (the “Announcement”) by
the Company on 8 December 2015, the Board has resolved to
change the use of the remaining net proceeds of the Placing
of approximately RMB29.9 million, representing approximately
39.5% of the net proceeds from the Placing, to (i) approximately
RMB18.2 million will be used as the consideration for the
Acquisition; and (i) approximately RMB11.7 million will be spent
on expansion of the business into the market on the golden-ager
and elderly care (including but not limited to acquisition of related
property, plant and equipment, acquisition of equity interest of
company in related business and formation of joint ventures and
projects with strategic partners).

WA ARHBEA-TE—RAF+_ANBZ
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B E & M AT

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2015, the
net proceeds from issuance of new shares of the Company had

been applied as follows:

R

Planned use of

RETHEBHZ " T—FHF+-_A=+—HIt

HiE > RARBITH RO FA/EHRIBEFRC B

proceeds as Actual use
stated in of proceeds
the Prospectus Planned use from the
from the of proceeds date of
Listing Date to as stated listing to
31 December in the 31 December
2015 Announcement 2015
B =2 it
IHHME IHHBE
—Z-1% 1%
+-RA=+—H +-A=+—H
I EAR R EIEN A OGRS LEHMERBA
BFRRE BANRERE KR & RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Expand funeral services network BRI BERBHE
in other major cities by entering BAEMEZH A
into funeral-services agreement TE AR A 48 12,960 12,960 12,960
Develop business in columbarium BRAEBNEEK
in Taiwan 11,560 - -
Purchase of funeral service equipment % B 78 % R 7% 58 18 K 5% 1t
and facilities 28,600 10,239 10,239
Refurbishment of new REHEEREAN
and existing service centres B 75 AR ) 21,266 21,266 21,266
Expansion of marketing network hEMIZ A% 1,450 1,450 1,450
Consideration for the Acquisition WEAEMZKE
of BLL - 18,200 15,920
Expansion of the business into RARERREA
the market on the golden-ager FREB TS
and elderly care - 11,721 -

The Directors expect that most of the business objectives stated
in the Announcement for the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2015 will be revisited in the first half of 2016. All the
remaining proceeds as at 31 December 2015 have been placed as

interest bearing deposits in banks.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2015, with the exception for the following deviations:

Under Code A.2.1 provides that the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The positions of Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") of the Company
are both currently carried on by Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai. The Board
considers that the Group's size is still relatively small and thus not
justified in separating the role of Chairman and CEO. The Group
has in place internal control system to perform the check and
balance function. The Board believes that having the same person
performing the roles of both Chairman and CEO does provide the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and that, operating
in this manner allows for more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning of the Group.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
such code of conduct from the date of listing of the Company'’s
Shares on the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2015.
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Board of Directors

A)

B)

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprises two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai
Mr. Kim Eun Back

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu

Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Lee Koon Hung

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business of the Group. Pursuant to the Code
Provision, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. While
all Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The biographical details
of the Directors and the relationship among the members
of the Board are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages from 31 to 34 of this annual
report.

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring the
business performance of the Group, as well as preparing and
approving financial statements. The Directors, collectively
and individually, are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders, for the manner in which the affairs of the
Group are managed and operated. As and when necessary,
the Directors can access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), and in the appropriate circumstances, seeking
of independent professional advice at the Group's expense
to ensure that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated
to the management for the management and administration
functions of the Group, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management should report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Group. The Board fully supports the senior management to
discharge its duties and responsibilities in all circumstances.
The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of
the Group.

The Board normally should schedule four meetings a year
at quarterly intervals and meets as and when required
to discuss the overall business, development strategy,
operations and financial reporting of the Company. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board held five
meetings. The Directors can attend meetings in person
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association. The
Directors will receive agenda and details of items for decision
in advance of each board meeting. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings
held during the year:

AN
PHEEIRMRE

EEeHRRTEEEEMANTASHE
EERITHBEERES - 45 TIEM A IS
3 FRIES REEBEMERBR A
TEHER  RRRRAREELRER
FHEMAENASENBEESSM
BEEEETH-EEFRBERAT EFE
ERNFRAEEERITHERBLE
T-EFSRTHREMAFTRYE AE
REBLFNAARAEENTE-

Exg-RESFHORIE 8F
BT Ui AR A BEER -
BREW 2ELRVBRABREE-BE
ZE-AF+ZA=+—HILFE #F
FEHBTOARER -EFAHRARE
BARPIEBERARPEFCHEBE
FTRATALFER - EFEREFS
SHRBTAHSRIIZENEFREF
B TREIERNEZTFALFEZ

B

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chairman) BURNBT T (£/E) 5/5
Mr. Kim Eun Back TEBLE 5/5
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Chai Chung Wai EEEEE 5/5
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B—®iE 5/5
Mr. Lee Koon Hung TR A 4/5
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There was one general meeting held on 14 May 2015 which
was the annual general meeting of the Company. The
following table shows the attendance of individual Directors
at the general meeting held:

R-FE-—RAFAATEBEHETRK
RRE ZAGNARAZRRBEFR
g TREIIERESHFARITZM
RRgZBER:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chairman) RIS () 1”1
Mr. Kim Eun Back TEESE 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors BV FEHTES

Mr. Chai Chung Wai = RE LA 11
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu (i 01
Mr. Lee Koon Hung EpS e 11

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code A.2.1, the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai is appointed as the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the
Board and the Group's business. The Board considers that Mr. Liu
has in-depth knowledge in the Group’s business and can make
appropriate decisions promptly and efficiently. Nevertheless, the
Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure to assess whether the separation
of the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company is necessary.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year, the Board complies at all times with the
requirement of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least 3 independent non-executive directors presenting
at least one-third of the Board with at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should
participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by attending
training course or reading relevant materials on the topics related
to roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has also established the following committees with
defined terms of reference:

o Audit Committee

o Remuneration Committee

o Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its
terms of reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms

of reference as well as the structure and membership of each
committee will be reviewed from time to time.
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The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors.

ARBEKIBREZES ([BEREE
) ARFEAIFER EHARAES28E
5.33MGHIFT EEmBERRE Kh=
PEIFMITESEMN

Composition and Meeting Record of the Audit EREEENERSRTH
Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2015, four meetings were BE_Z-—hF+HA=+—HLL#F
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual B BRITERGH TRHBIIERNE
Directors at the meetings held during the year: EFARFEE BN

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu (Chairman) B—iE (£E) 4/4
Mr. Chai Chung Wai = REE A 4/4
Mr. Lee Koon Hung =S 3/4

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports before submission
to the Board. The Audit Committee focused not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices
but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the
GEM Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review
of the Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, the followings:

making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditor;

i. reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

ii.  monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-yearly
report and, quarterly reports;

iv.  liaising with the Board and the senior management
and to meet with the auditors;

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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V. reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems; and

vi.  reviewing the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) according to the relevant
provision of the GEM Listing Rules with written terms of
reference which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Remuneration Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2015, one meeting was
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu
Mr. Lee Koon Hung

B—EE
FEALLE

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration package of the Board members and the
senior management of the Company.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, the followings:

i. making recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management;

i.  determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management;

ii. reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and
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iv.  reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company.

iv. BWHERAERBBRIIK B
BREEMARRTEERER
EEEFELNRE  UBRZEE
NeBMaNRRAREREY
ARBEMEBRAFRTEELS
=EM-

Nomination Committee 0 REZA®

The Company has established a nomination committee (the $ RAIERZZEZNFNAKIIREZE
“Nomination Committee”) in August 2009 with written 2 ([IBEBRZEG]) WIREEAMR
terms of reference in accordance with requirements of the E%‘J FIHEMBESRE AR =AY
Stock Exchange which consists of three independent non- FBMITEFHAK -

executive Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the REZESHENRSERLHE
Nomination Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2015, one meeting was BHE_ZE-—hF+HA=T—HLL#F
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual B BRIT—RgHE TRIIERNE
Directors at the meetings held during the year: EFRNHFEER2BR

Mr. Lee Koon Hung (Chairman) TRREE (FE) 0/1
Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Acting Chairman) BEREEE (AEEE) ”n
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B—oEE 11
During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed REN REEZEGCDEHNARRES
the appointment of the Board members of the Company. BBz EE-

Role and Function ARk

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, the followings:

reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

i. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

ii. assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;
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iv. ~ making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;

V. making recommendations to the Board on the policy
concerning the diversity of Board members; and

vi.  giving full consideration to the Board’s policy
concerning diversity of Board members adopted from
time to time.

The Board adopted on 26 August 2013 a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and delegated certain
duties under the Policy to the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee and the Board had also reviewed
on 24 March 2015 the structure of the Board and is of
the opinion the Board consisted of members with different
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills and knowledge, which met
the requirements under the terms of the Board Diversity
Policy.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal

Under Code A.4.1, all the non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present,
each of Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu, Mr. Chai Chung Wai and Mr.
Lee Koon Hung, the independent non-executive Directors have
been appointed for a specific term of three years.

According to the Company'’s articles of association, one-third of
the Directors are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
Directors to retire every year shall be those appointed by the Board
during the year and those who have been longest in office since
their last re-election.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration paid
to the auditors, Crowe Horwarth (HK) CPA Limited in respect of
audit services and non-audit service assignment amounted to
approximately RMB813,000 (2014: approximately RMB1,032,000)
and approximately RMB180,000 (2014: approximately
RMB167,000) respectively.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for the period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and on a going concern basis. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Having made appropriate
enquiries, the Board is not aware any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cost significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. It is the
auditor’s responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements and
to report their opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, and
for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
auditor’s report.

Internal Control

During the year, the Board complied with the Code on internal
control. The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The management of
the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and
risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use
or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve
a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors. During the year, the Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Company and its principal subsidiaries with no
material issues noted.

The Board also considered that there is adequate resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in the Group to monitor
the Group's accounting and financial reporting functions. The
Company will ensure such matters are under review by the Board
periodically and training programmes will be provided to the staff
whenever necessary to ensure their knowledge and experience are
adequate to discharge their duties.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Mok Yu Ting was appointed as Company Secretary. According
to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Mok have taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the articles of association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the
"EGM(s)”) shall also be convened on the requisition of two
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within three months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s), as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”). Under the Policy,
the Company's information shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual
general meetings, the Company’s financial reports (quarterly
report, half-yearly reports and annual reports), and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange website.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong or the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting
The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a Shareholders’” meeting shall be any
number of Shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings at the date of the requisition.

Shareholders or investors can enquire by putting their proposals
with the Company through the following means:—

Hotline no.: 2153 3231

Unit D2-C, 6/F,

Hang Fung Industrial Building Phase 2,
2G Hok Yuen Street,

Hunghom, Hong Kong

By post:

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include
the publication of annual, half-yearly and quarterly reports,
notices, announcements and circulars, the Company’s website at
www.sinolifegroup.com and meetings with investors and analysts.
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Directors and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (21 R), aged 57, is the chairman of
the Group. He was appointed as an executive Director on 24
February 2005. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall corporate
strategies, planning, overall operational management and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liu founded Bau Shan and became
its controlling shareholder in 1998, and has since then been
continuously expanding its management team. Mr. Liu is also the
team head of the funeral services deed team. Since the Group's
establishment, Mr. Liu has played an active role in training its
team.

Mr. Liu obtained certificates in Non-Profit Making Organisation
Management and Mortuary Science and Funeral Service
Management from Nanhua University (F8 % A2 ) in 2000
and 2001 respectively. Having over 10 years of managerial,
corporate and business experience, Mr. Liu began his career in
funeral business since 1998. Mr. Liu has been a member of Japan
Environmental Zhai Yuan Association ( A ZNIB3E 25501 € ) , the
National Funeral Director Association of the United States and the
FIAT-IFTA of Holland, and a council member of Society of Chinese
Funeral Education (% RBIEZEZE 2 € ) and Chinese Society
of Life and Death Studies ( FE 452 € ) . Mr. Liu had also been
a lecturer holding seminars on the skills of being a ceremonial
master and cosmetology at the Continuing Education Centre, Ling
Tung College (SR BT 2T EEEHEZE F ) in Taiwan.
Mr. Liu is currently an honorary member of the China Funeral
Association (FF B & ZEH# € ) in the PRC. Mr. Liu has not served
in any other public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past 3
years.
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Directors and Senior Management

—

EEZNENEEE

Mr. Kim Eun Back (& 1#) , aged 49, is an executive Director
of the Company appointed on 16 February 2009. Mr. Kim joined
the Group in July 1999. Mr. Kim has over 10 years of experience
in the industry of funeral services since he joined Bau Shan in
1999. He is responsible for the implementation of the Group’s
objectives and business development in Vietnam, in particular
overseeing the daily operations in Vietnam, monitoring and over-
seeing the implementation of funeral services, the improvement
of the services and public relation affairs of the Group. Mr.
Kim graduated from the Department of Political Science of the
National Chengchi University (Bl 37 BUGRE) in June 1989,
obtained a master degree from the Department of Public Affairs
of the Yonsei University (XEtH X2 ), Korea in February 1993
and obtained the certificate of ceremonial master from Nanhua
University, Taiwan in 2000. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kim had
working experience in companies that provide funeral services.
He has accumulated experience in the funeral services industry
which is beneficial to the Group. Mr. Kim has not served in any
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past 3 years.

(in

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (BE &), aged 49, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company. He joined the Group in
February 2009 and was appointed an independent non-executive
Director on 16 February 2009. Mr. Chai obtained his master
degree of Accounting from Jinan University on 6 January 2004
and of business administration from the University of Manchester
in December 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chai has
extensive experience of over 20 years in the accounting and
financial field. Mr. Chai has been the company secretary of Ping
Shan Tea Group Limited (formerly known as “Huafeng Group
Holdings Limited”) (Stock Code: 364), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, from 6 August 2009 to 30 September 2013. Mr.
Chai has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu (82— ), aged 71, is an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. He joined
the Group in February 2009 and was appointed an independent
non-executive Director on 16 February 2009. Mr. Ching obtained
the degree of bachelor of Science in Aerospace Engineering from
the University of Kansas in 1967, and the master of business
administration degree from the University of Toronto in 1976. He
is the director of Caneast Group (Canada) Inc. and also a fellow
of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Mr. Ching has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years.

Mr. Lee Koon Hung (ZE@i#t), aged 53, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company appointed on 30
September 2012. Mr. Lee obtained a higher diploma from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as “The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University”). Mr. Lee is presently the director of Long Rich
Investment Consultants Limited. Mr. Lee has extensive experience
in investment. Mr. Lee is presently a member of the North District
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Lee is also the chairman of Sha
Tau Kok District Rural Committee, N.T., the Ex-officio Executive
Councillor of Heung Yee Kuk N.T. and Village Indigenous
Inhabitant Representative of Wu Kau Tang of Sha Tau Kok District
Rural Committee, N.T.. Mr. Lee is also the honorary president of
Border District Junior Police Call of Hong Kong, a member of the
school management committee of New Territories Heung Yee
Kuk Tai Po District Secondary School and a member of the school
management committee of Sha Tau Kok Central Primary School.
Mr. Lee has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years.

Senior Management

Ms. Chang Hui-Lan (3®&2 8 ), aged 50, graduated from the
National Sun Yat-sen University (B3 /[ K& ) | Taiwan with
a master degree of Executive MBA program in 2012 and joined
the Group in 2012 as Department Head of Head Management
Office. Ms. Chang has also obtained the certificate of IPMA
Level D, Certificated Project Management Associate issued by
Taiwan Project Management Association in 2009. As head of
the Department Head of Head Management Office and also the
general manager of Chongging Xibao and Chongging Xizhou,
Ms. Chang is responsible for the implementation of the Group's
objectives and business development, in particular overseeing
of personnel, business analysis and internal audit function of
all funeral parlours and funeral service centres in the PRC and
the Group. Ms. Chang is also the team head of the internal
compliance team. She also has over 9 years of experience in
management in respect of the business and operation in funeral
industry.
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Mr. Shih Chih Jen (ME%{=) , aged 46, joined the Group in July
2010 as the deputy general manager of the Group’s Hong Kong
division. He obtained the certificate of ceremonial master from
Nanhua University (R 2£ X&) , Taiwan in September 2002 and
also was employed by Continuing Education Center, Ling Tung
College (28 R XM 2Pt B EH EHE T 0) as the lecturer
of Funeral service in 2002. As the sales manager of the Group's
Vietnam operation, Mr. Shih is responsible for the sales, marketing
and overall business development of Vietham segment. Mr. Shih
has over 14 years of management experience in the funeral
services industry and acquired the requisite management capability
to manage the funeral services business of the Group to its
benefit.

Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying (&% &), aged 37, graduated from the
Ming Chuan University ($45{E X2 ) with a bachelor degree of
Management in 2001 and joined the Group in June 2001 as
an administrative assistant. Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying has since served
the Group to the present in various capacities. Ms. Pan has a
thorough knowledge and understanding of the Group's business
and operations, and has developed a high level of proficiency and
management ability with respect to her work with the Group.
As head of the funeral services deed department, Ms. Pan is
responsible for marketing and attaining the sale of funeral services
deeds. Ms. Pan has over 15 years of experience in management in
respect of the Group's business and operation.

Company Secretary

Mr. Mok Yu Ting (E#EE) , aged 39, has served as the financial
controller and company secretary of the Company since March
2008. Mr. Mok is responsible for the Company’s financial and
treasury management. Mr. Mok is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Mok graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 1999 with the degree of bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and further obtained two master
degrees of Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2006 and of Law in China Business Law from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2009. He has over 16 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
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The Board is here to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in nature of Group’s principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 18 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Appropriations

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 188.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Use of Proceeds From the Company’s Initial
Public Offering

The proceeds from the Company's issue of new shares at the
time of its listing on the GEM of Stock Exchange in September
20009, after deduction of related issuance expenses, amounted to
approximately RMB82.3 million.

On 8 December 2015, the Board has resolved to change the use
of the remaining net proceeds of approximately RMB29.9 million,
representing approximately 39.5% of the net proceeds. Details
of movements in use of proceeds during the year are set out on
pages from 16 to 18 of this annual report.
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Summary of Financial Information

METHER

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-AZ+-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

ZE-R§ —Z—pmfE 2= —E--f CZE——%

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

57) (E3) (&%) (E751)

AEBRTRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Turnover EEE 61,633 69,648 63,106 61,767 72,521

Gross profit EA 35,246 36,779 29,638 28,707 26,259

Loss before taxation BREATEE (7,183) (10,987) (15,966) (28,565) (27,947)
Loss attributable to AARHBAEEER

owners of the Company (9,402) (11,142) (16,175) (29,487) (30,079)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREK (BR)/BH

(RMB cents) (AEEBD) (1.27) (1.50) (2.18) (3.97) (4.05)

As at 31 December
B+=BA=+-H

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Z2-1§ C—T-@mF ZT-=Ff T ZT——F

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AB®TRT ARETT AREBFT ARETT ARETx

Non-current assets FRBEE 59,400 49,013 65,433 63,403 57,027

Current assets MEBEE 211,691 234,082 236,955 282,592 315,135

Current liabilities HEAE 99,950 100,839 107,459 126,141 125,207

Net assets FEE 164,083 174,757 186,620 210,294 236,892

Major Customers and Suppliers FTEERRMER

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of funeral
services, none of its customers accounted for more than 1% of
its total turnover during the year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for 20.9% of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein

amounted to 11.8%.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any material beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers.

Segment Reporting

Details of segment reporting are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Property

Details of movements in investment property of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves
At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for

distribution to owners comprising share premium account less
accumulated losses, amounted to approximately RMB90.1 million.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year

amounted to approximately RMB27,000 (2014: approximately
RMB100,000).
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai
Mr. Kim Eun Back

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu

Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Lee Koon Hung

According to the requirements of Article 16.18 of the articles of
association of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Kim Eun Back and
Mr. Lee Koon Hung will retire by rotation in accordance with
Article 16.18 of the Article of Association, and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Board of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out on pages from 31 to 34 of this annual
report.

Directors’ Service Agreement

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai and
Mr. Kim Eun Back has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 9
September 2009 and 9 September 2009 respectively, which
continues thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less
than three months’ notice in writing to the other party.
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Two of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ching Clement Yat-biu and Mr. Chai Chung Wai, have re-entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years from 9 September 2015 to 8 September 2018, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month'’s notice
in writing to the other party.

One independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Koon Hung has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 30 September 2015 to 29
September 2018, which can be terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Emolument Policy

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

Remuneration of Directors and Five
Individuals With Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the directors and five individuals
with highest emoluments are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation

As at 31 December 2015, the relevant interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (“SFQ")),
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO
(including interests or short positions which they have taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of SFO) or required
pursuant to section 352 of SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or required, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.68 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

Aggregate long positions in the Shares

EERFLFINEMAMEBEEZ
ﬂgg HRERMRAEEZESR

RZZE—AF+-_A=+—H EFLES1T
BABRARRREMBEZE (TEREFH
MHEED ([EHERBEEN]) (F571F)
*kxvﬁB) 2Bt ([R& M ]) - MRER G, k(&
BRREREERF R EEFIEXVEETRS
/ug,g;u AN F) KB A2 P 2 AR R R 2 Mk
2 (BEBREEFMBEKRIBEIEXESE
WEAESER BB 2 S IOAR) AR
BB 5 K B S AR5 53526 5 A SZ A& B B d
ZERMZEEESNAR  NEREE%E
witﬁu‘%ﬁ BIZE5.4615 2568158 MESHTT

BEXHZHRENENNR REEZFT2 8
*’E SMORBIAT

RG22 F R HBEE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held the Company

E 3

ERTRED

EREER BaKE FRiFBEin &8 E BHhEat

Liu Tien-Tsai Personal 308,184,000 41.51%

IR Et A

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short FEBRRERIEG RHERMBRGZE

positions in the shares and underlying shares &Ri&kE&

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of SFO showed that as at 31 December
2015, the Company was notified of no substantial shareholders’
interests (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company), being 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had a material interest in, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares Or
Debentures

Apart from the details as disclosed under the heading “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation”
above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Exempted Continuing Connected Transactions
Trademark Licence Agreement

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered into the Trademark
Licence Agreement (the “Trademark Agreement”) with Mr. Liu
Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu”). Pursuant to the Trademark Agreement,
Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the Group on an exclusive basis
a licence to use a number of trademarks and service marks
in connection with the Group’s funeral services business at a
consideration of HK$1,000 per year.

Signing of Deed of Trust

On 14 March 2003, a deed of trust (the “Niao Song Deed”) was
entered into between Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd
(BLEmREERRM AR AR (“Bau Shan”) , a subsidiary of the
Company and Ms. Li Pi Hsia (“Ms. Li”) (288 ) , spouse of Mr.
Liu, in relation to the land property situated in Taiwan at No. 943
in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township, Kaohsiung County (/=%
S RINEBIINER94315% ) (the “Niao Song Property”). Under the
Niao Song Deed, Bau Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property,
which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be registered under the name
of and held on trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of ten
years commencing on 14 March 2003. Ms. Li has agreed that she
shall act in the interest of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao Song
Property during the term of the Niao Song Deed. On 15 March
2013, a renewal of Niao Song Deed was entered into for a term of
ten years commencing on 15 March 2013.
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The Group entered into a trust arrangement instead of transferring
the Niao Song Property to the Group because, as advised by the
Taiwan legal adviser to the Group, the Niao Song Property is a
piece of agricultural land and the Law of Agriculture Development
of Taiwan does not allow Bau Shan being a private corporate
body, to be registered as an owner of a piece of agricultural land.
Therefore, the Niao Song Property is held on trust by Ms. Li for
Bau Shan. The Taiwan legal adviser to the Group has advised that
the Niao Song Deed complies with the Trust Act and other relevant
laws and regulations in Taiwan.

.|I|n

Licensing of the use of a property in the PRC to Chongqing
Xibao by Mr. Liu

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing the licensee,
Chongqging Xibao, a subsidiary of the Company, to lawfully
use the property situated at Unit 1404 on Level 14, Zhongxing
Garden, No. 1 Heping Road, Chongging City, the PRC (the
“Licensed Property”) as the registered office without the payment
of rent or licence fee. The signed confirmation from Mr. Liu
authorizing Chongging Xibao to use the Licensed Property as its
registered office does not limit Mr. Liu’s personal use, rental and
mortgage of the Licensed Property. There was no revenue or profit
contributed by the Licensed Property during the year as there had
been no occupancy of the Licenced Property during the year.

The property licensing arrangement with Mr. Liu will last until 30
January 2052.

All the transactions fall within Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM Listing
Rules and each constitutes a de minimis continuing connected
transaction exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. All the related
party transactions did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.
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Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interest in a Competing Business

During Year 2015, none of the Directors, or any person who was
(or group of persons who together were) entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at general
meetings of the Company and which was (or were) able, as a
practical matter, to direct or influence the management of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business, which
competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

Bank Borrowings

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2015 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
parties. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct from the date of listing of the Company’s
Shares on the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2015.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The major terms of
the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(@

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group as
incentive or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

The participants include (i) any employee or proposed
employee of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group
holds an equity interest, including any executive directors
and any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of such
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; and (ii) any consultants,
advisers, agents, partners or joint-venture partners of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The exercise price of a share option under the Share Option
Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date of the particular option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date of that particular option; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share on the offer date of the particular option.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the day on which trading of the Company’s shares
commenced on the GEM Board (“General Scheme Limit”).

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 representing 10% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the year end date.
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Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any participants in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at
the date of the grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in writing
and shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible
participants concerned for a period of 30 days from the
date upon which it is made provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary
of the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or the
termination of the scheme. An offer shall be deemed to
have been accepted by the eligible participant concerned in
respect of all shares which are offered to such participant
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
offer duly signed by the eligible participant, together with
a non-refundable remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$10 by way of consideration for the grant thereof
is received by the Company, within such time as may be
specified in the offer.

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable
starting half year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the share
option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are exercisable
starting one year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event should not
exceed 5 years from the date of grant of the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in the
circumstances by giving notice in writing to the Company
stating that the option is thereby exercised and the number
of shares in respect of which it is so exercised. Each
such notice must be accompanied by a non-refundable
remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
shares in respect of which the notice is given.
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Details of the share options granted and remaining outstanding as R =%

—hAEFT-A=T—HERHERK

at 31 December 2015 are as follows: Tl 2 BRI IR T
Number of share options
HRERE
Exercise At At
Name/category price 1 January 31 December
of participants Date of grant per share Exercisable period 2015 Lapsed 2015
B® 3
=14 ~8-1% —E-1f
SHENE /B BHAH fTER® fTESR —-A—H 2%% +-RA=+-H
Directors of the Company
FAFEE
Mr. Kim Eun Back 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
15 January 2017
tEERA —E-—#-A+XH 0.6078 7T ZE-=%-A+~HE
“Z—t5-A+hA
Directors of subsidiaries
HELRES
Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
15 January 2017
ERBLL Z2-ZF-R+RH 0.60%7T Z2-ZF-Rt+RHE
I il =
Ms. Chang Hui-Lan 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
15 January 2017
REFLL “2-"F-A+<H 0601  —T-=F-A+XHE
ZZ—+E5-AthA
Continuous contract 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 9,020,000 (252,000) 8,768,000
employees 11 February 2020
EHEMER I 18787 “Z-TF\Rt+-HE
ZZ-ZF_RT+-H
16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 4,920,000 (800,000) 4,120,000
15 January 2017
“E2-—E-R+KH 0608T  —E-ZF-AtRHE
“Z—t5-AtHA
Consultants 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 41,900,000 - 41,900,000
11 February 2020
Br “E-TF-At+-H 18T “E-ZF\Rt+-HE
“Z-ZE-A1-H
59,840,000 (1,052,000 58,788,000
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The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire ten years
from the date of grant. As at 31 December 2015, 1,168,000 of
50,668,000 options (2014: 1,420,000 of 50,920,000 options)
were exercisable in the same year of the date of grant with 50%
each of the options granted exercisable at six months and at
the end of the year from the date of grant and 49,500,000 of
50,668,000 options (2014: 49,500,000 of 50,920,000 options)
are exercisable over five years from the date of grant, with 20%
each of the options granted exercisable at six months and first
calendar date of following four years from the date of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire five years from the
date of grant and will be exercisable after one year from the date
of grant. Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates have been granted share
options under the Share Option Scheme.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Corporate Governance
Save and except the deviation from the Code A.2.1 as contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Company had,

during the year, complied with the Code.

The Group's compliance with the Code is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 19 to 30 of this annual report.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

.|I|n

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’'s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

Auditors

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe

Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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Independent Auditor's Report

Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINO-LIFE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino-
Life Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 51 to 188, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

SRV TR

EEEE &P FEMEBMERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

B EE IBTRET 7R SEH 092
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2016

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P0O5049
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and O ner Comprenensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2015 Eki_ =

Z I:I\/

I@F

H b2 i e

—hF+ZA=+t—HLHFE

2015 2014
bt Sk - —TF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®TT AREEF T
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue BEH 4(a) 61,633 69,648
Cost of sales 5 AR (26,387) (32,869)
Gross profit £ 35,246 36,779
Valuation gain on investment KREWFEZ HEKS
property 16 - 765
Other revenue Bl es 5 2,186 3,755
Other net gain/(loss) Hibes, (E518) 358 5 1,053 (1,217)
Selling expenses HER X (5,807) (6,992)
Administrative expenses THFEX (35,485) (36,970)
Other operating expenses B2 (4,112) (6,693)
Loss from operations REGR (6,919) (10,573)
Finance costs B E A AR 6(a) (264) (414)
Loss before taxation BRAEE 6 (7,183) (10,987)
Income tax PRriS %t 7 (2,582) (609)
Loss for the year FEKSE (9,765) (11,596)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ EEHM2E (BR)
income for the year I &
Item that will not be reclassified ~ T EHDEEIERHN
to profit or loss: HA
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation BEER LT RIEFTZ
of land and buildings held B (B4 B
for own use (619) 1,385
ltem that may be Higngegsiois
reclassified subsequently BzEAIER ¢
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on ME R AR MBI
translation of financial HNEERS ([3ER B ZE
statements of operations %)z
outside the People’s W mMERTEEY
Republic of China MEH Z5E
("non-PRC operations”):
Exchange differences arising FEENEHE
during the year (290) (1,611)
Reclassification adjustments BHEFTHNEEZ
relating to non-PRC FERBIEB
operations disposed of B O BRFE
in the year - (42)
(290) (1,653)
Other comprehensive loss for EEHM2EEE
the year, net of income tax (fIFxFRE]M) 10 (909) (268)
Total comprehensive loss for FEZEGIREST
the year, net of income tax (MB&FT1RIR) (10,674) (11,864)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

reaEmMEMEE K EmR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & —ZE—RAF+-A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—Z—1F —E-MF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5% AR®TR ARET T
(Restated)
(&5)
Loss attributable to: PTALEGER:
Owners of the Company PN/NEIE ZS N 11 (9,402) (11,142)
Non-controlling interests SEfE IR (363) (454)
(9,765) (11,596)
Total comprehensive loss LT ARG
attributable to: 2EGIREE:
Owners of the Company ZA/NISIEZZ =N (10,534) (11,504)
Non-controlling interests I AR = (140) (360)
(10,674) (11,864)
Loss per share BRIBGR 11
Basic and diluted BEXRREE RMBAE®(1.27) cents®  RMBARE(150) cents?

The notes on pages 59 to 188 form part of these financial 28598 £188H v it AZELRA M BHRE
statements. Z—EBS o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sre IR

As at 31 December 2015 R=-_ZE—HF+-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—ZT—1%F —E—mF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®TRT AREEF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB M 14 33,751 38,265
Investment property REME 16 4,438 4,375
Prepaid lease payments FEHEE R K 15 3,589 3,671
Intangible assets mLEE 17 2 2
Deposit for acquisition of equity WHER —RH A A
interests in a company AR 2 IES 21 15,920 -
Deposits for hire of funeral THABEERBEE
parlours and funeral R LIRS
services centres 21 1,700 2,700
59,400 49,013
CURRENT ASSETS mE)EE
Financial assets designated as B RIEATERTA
at fair value through B WBEE
profit or loss 18 34,777 45,917
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 22 1,500 -
Development and formation costs 3% K ik 37 A 74X 19 14,333 14,860
Inventories 78 20 2,692 803
Tax recoverable A Y [B] 7 18 27(a) 7 8
Trade and other receivables B 5 & Ho A [ W 5k I8 21 59,588 63,326
Prepaid lease payments AR EE K 15 82 82
Cash and cash equivalents ReLRSEFEDY 23 98,712 109,086
211,691 234,082
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAR
Trade and other payables g5 & E A et 518 24 5,963 8,196
Receipts in advance FE U FRTE 25 88,842 90,590
Current portion of bank IRITIEE Z BN
borrowings 26 614 594
Current taxation BIEAFR 18 27(a) 2,969 1,459
Provisions R 28 1,562 -
(99,950) (100,839)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREIAR
Receipts in advance TEU R IE 25 106 39
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 6,952 7,460
(7,058) (7,499)
NET ASSETS BERHE 164,083 174,757

TELEBEERRLAE —E-HEFFR
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Gonsolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE MRS

As at 31 December 2015 R-—Z—HF+_-_HA=+—H

2015 2014
—E—-1¥F — P
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5% AER®TR ARET T
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners F2ATHBEAEEEI
of the Company
Share capital [N 29 69,218 69,218
Reserves T 93,081 103,615
162,299 172,833
Non-controlling interests JERERRIER 1,784 1,924
TOTAL EQUITY BaeE 164,083 174,757
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson 22 HERENR -_ZT—"XF=-A=-+-BlER
March 2016. BRETA
Liu Tien-Tsai Kim Eun Back
Chairman Executive Director
iR At SEiE
e HITEE
The notes on pages 59 to 188 form part of these financial Z859H & 18852511&7%5 EERE M BmE
statements. Z—#H
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Consolidated Statement of Ghamges In Equity
)5k

;\\/ \

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE —

B

=

Attributable to owners of the Company

A4

.\_

/ N /|\|:|l|\

—RE+=A=+—ALFE

SARRAABLE
Foreign
Statutory  Properties currency  Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory surplus  revaluation translation compensation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity
L]
EERR WE GAWER  BEWZ
Bd  RRER  AREE  EEEE 1 B {11 ] B WREE  RHER @ nERE  NAed
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT ARBTR  ARETR ARBTT  ARETn  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  AREBTT  ARETR
At 1 January 2014 69,218 220633 (16,261) 25 1,550 1,188 (18,535) 8,004 (81,686) 184,336 2,284 186,620
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (11,142) (11,142) (454) (11,596)
Surplus on revaluation of
[and and buldings held for own use - - - - - 1385 - - - 1,385 - 1385
Exchange differences on
translation of finandil statements of
non-PRC operations - - - - - - (1,705 - - (1,705 % (1611)
Reclassfication adjustments relating to ERERLEL
non-PRC operations disposed of 3FEF ik ¥
in the year ENAEAE - - - - - - () - - (42) - @)
Other comprehensive incomef{oss) A2 ERE/ (Bi) - - - - - 138 (1,747) - - (362 9% (268)
Total comprehensive loss for the year TFEREFRLE - - - - - 138 (1,747) - (11,142) (11,504) (360) (11,864)
el el vaweclors. WEREBRBSEEZRD - - - - LT TLTTTTLTTTIATTIILTTIIRTTTIITTTY
Lapse of share options granted BREBRELR - - - - - - - (193) 193 - - -
Transfer to statutory resenve BREETRE - - - 561 - - - - (561) - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+ZAZ1-R 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 786 1,550 2573 (20,282 7812 (93,196) 172,833 1924 174,757
At 1 January 2015 R-2-5%-R-A 69,218 20,633 (16,261) 86 1,550 2513 (20,282) 7812 (93,19%) 172833 1,924 174,757
Loss for the year EREA - - - - - - - - (9.402) (9.402) (363) (8.765)
Deficit on revaluation of land and HERRLIHRETZ
buldings held for own use T i - - - - - (619) - - - (619) - (619)
Exchange differences on translation of financial  EFRE £ HEHRER 2
statements of non-PRC operations EXEE - - - - - - (513) - - (513) m (290)
Other comprehensive incomef{oss) A2ENE/ (BB) - - - - - (619) (513) - - (1132) m (909)
Total comprehensive loss for the year IEE2ABRAE - - - - - (619) (513) - (9,402) (10,534) (140) (10,674)
e . e
At 31 December 2015 RZS-EF+ZR=+-H 69,218 20,633 (16,261) 86 1,550 1,954 (20,795) 7753 (102,539) 162,299 1,784 164,083
The notes on pages 59 to 188 form part of these financial 25598 £1888 v Wit A% LKA W EIRE
statements. 2o

TELEBEERRLAE —E-HEFFR

+

55



F

56

=P

Gonsolidated Statement of Cash Flow
I\‘/_.]_\/\EE Nl //Ib

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & —ZE—RAF+-A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—Z-AfF —
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AER®TRT ARBFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERY
Loss before taxation bR AT ES 18 (7,183) (10,987)
Adjustments for: FEE
Amortisation of prepaid lease TET & 35S
payments 6(c) 82 82
Impairment loss on other Hth fE R IBRIE
receivables &8 6(c) 382 -~
Impairment loss on property, W HE R
plant and equipment HEREEE 6(c) 1,045 -
Prepayments written off T8 < FRIE 8 6() 760 -
Finance costs A& A 6(a) 264 414
Deficit on revaluation of BEBRZ LMK
land and buildings held for BFEHEA
own use 5 2 420
Valuation loss WEYHEZHEEE
on investment property 16 - (765)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment B S 5 1,400 275
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR EE 5 - 796
Depreciation e 6(c) 5,278 5,229
Loss on derecognition of assets BUBMREE ZE1E 6(c) - 6,316
Interest income B A 5 (1,764) (1,455)
Net realised and unrealised loss/ 1B AEATFERTA
(gain) on financial assets BRoBEE
designated as at fair value EZE@&* AR R
through profit or loss (W) F58 5 277 (236)
Net exchange gain SINGEE UK 7 R 5 (2,337) (3)
Equity-settled share-based L‘Mﬁﬁﬁ%;ﬁﬁxf
payment expenses 2 5 ﬁ 6(c) = 1
Provision for future costs of *ETJ%?E%%HW%?@%’U
delivering funeral services RMUBERSE 2
under funeral service deeds R IR AN B 6(c) 1,558 -
6,947 11,074
(236) 87
CHANGES IN WORKING EEECER
CAPITAL
Increase in inventories BFEE N (1,889) (435)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 & A b e GRIE
receivables Ve 2,596 1,712
Decrease/(increase) in financial 5 E%Tﬁ?&$fﬁ?)\
assets designated as at fair TEI s W EE
value through profit or loss A (1Eh0) 11,370 (6,245)
Decrease in deposits for hire of fﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ B ERE
funeral parlours and funeral PR RD
services centres 1,000 1,000
Decrease/(increase) in 3% K AR ST AR AR
development and wA, (3 )
formation costs 527 (917)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 N E b JE A SRIER
payables (2,233) (947)
Decrease in receipts in advance T8 UL R IE R (2,991) (2,409)
8,380 (8,241)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

eReREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

2015 2014
—ZT—1%F —E—mF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®TRT AREEF T
CASH GENERATED FROM/ wER®(FRA)R&
(USED IN) OPERATIONS 8,144 (8,154)
Income taxes paid EREEH
The People’s Republic of R AR AANE
China (“PRC") ([E]) (899) (1,147)
Taiwan =0 (173) -
Income taxes refunded EREMSH
Taiwan & e - 32
PRC M - 210
(1,072) (905)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ B X¥MR#& (FA)
(USED IN) OPERATING Hasg
ACTIVITIES 7,072 (9,059)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B_EEH
Increase in available-for-sale At ERE
investments (1,500) -
Payment for the purchase MBI - BB K
of property, plant and BN
equipment (3,487) (4,103)
Proceeds from disposal HEWE BERERHEZ
of property, plant and Fr 8 3k 18
equipment 27 190
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of HEWB AR (1
cash disposed of ﬁﬁﬁﬁzfﬁﬁ) 33 - (613)
Proceeds from termination IEEEREEE 2
of operation of a funeral ﬁﬁ?g'r?k
parlour 6(c)(i) - 2,324
Interest received B F B 1,764 1,455
Payment of deposit Wi —H AR R
for acquisition of equity U el iz N /N
interests in a company (15,872) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING #EFEFARERHE
ACTIVITIES (19,068) (747)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds from new bank FERITEE
borrowings 34,726 91,717
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (35,327) (92,321)
Interest on bank borrowings RITEER B (264) (412)
Repayment of other loan BEEMER - (106)
Interest on other loan HMmERHE - (2)

TELEBEERRLAE —E-HEFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

nﬂ«Aﬁg%jiUw

=~

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F

—hF+ZA=t—HLFE

2015 2014
—E—hEF — O
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
M5 AER®%TxX ARETIT
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING REEZEIFfARSREH
ACTIVITIES (865) (1,124)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BeRBEEBYRIBE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (12,861) (10,930)
CASH AND CASH BW—B—HZH&R
EQUIVALENTS AT ReEEYD
1 JANUARY 109,086 122,820
EFFECT OF FOREIGN IREFEHoTE
EXCHANGE RATES CHANGES 2,487 (2,804)
CASH AND CASH W+=ZRAR=+—B%Z
EQUIVALENTS AT 31 ReRBE&SED
DECEMBER 98,712 109,086
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES BeRBAEEED
OF CASH AND CASH e
EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITMFHEEE 23 98,712 109,086
The notes on pages 59 to 188 form part of these financial %598 % 18852511&7%5 Fira R BmEk
statements. et~
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AT R B at

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
on 24 February 2005 in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law. Its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 9 September 2009.
Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
The subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the provision
of funeral and related services, sale of burial plots and
tombstones, provision of cemetery maintenance services.
The Company and its subsidiaries are herein collectively
referred to as the “Group”. The address of the Company’s
registered office and principal place of business are The
Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre, Oleander Way, 802
West Bay Road, PO. Box 32052, Grand Cayman KY1-1208,
Cayman Islands and Unit D2-C, 6/F, Hang Fung Industrial
Building Phase 2, 2G Hok Yuen Street, Hung Hom, Hong
Kong respectively.

1.

—RE#H

TEREBEBAERAR ([AAFIR
BEREREAFEN_TTAF_HA
—tMRERSESEMKL A —HE
HEeAREEAR HROHNR_-FTZN
FAANBEDTEBMARSMARRAR
(M2 Frl) Bl AR ([8I1Z4R ) £
H AT mBIRS ok

RARalEZRHEREER -EWNBEA
AFE2EHRRERELBBERE .
HEEMRER  UNREERRER
B ARTREMBARRTXHHEA
[REE] AARGFMHEREREE
&N 2 # ik 9 Bl & Grand Pavilion
Commercial Centre, Oleander Way, 802
West Bay Road, PO. Box 32052, Grand
Cayman KY1-1208, Cayman Islands & &
B MBEE2GEE T KXE2H6E
D2-CZE°
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Notes to the Financial Statements

+ A
Br % ac st
For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

+ 20
B 15 R R MR E
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HiZE LT —AF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHH %K (1)

(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) mEBKHER2EE
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The functional
currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The functional currencies of its subsidiaries
are Renminbi ("RMB"), New Taiwan dollars (“NTD"),
US$, Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") or Vietnamese dong
("VND") for subsidiaries incorporated/established
in the People's Republic of China (“the PRC"),
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam respectively. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, except when
otherwise indicated, which is different from the
functional currency of the Company as majority of the
Group’s transactions are denominated in RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

- investment properties (see note 2(d));

- freehold land and buildings (see note 2(e)); and

- financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss (see note 2(g)).

BHE-_Z—AF+=-_A=+—8”
IEFEZHRAEMBREBEAR
BVELENGE

FAARERERERM B RR A
BAERZIEREEBEREL
E% ([N ER] T8 AR T
ZHEHEBERET - RHPEAR
KB [HE] a& FELB
Bl R B AR 2 e
EEDRBARE (TARE]) -
MeaB(#Makl) XxT BT
(Ex))=mfE (THEE]) -
HRAEEXRIEIRZTIAAR
BitE BRAMBRERTIUAR
B (HEARBZEEETR)
25 BRREERI AEEEY
MR AZEREO TS

UM BRENHER 2 B E
AR EHARE T EER
& BT ATFEFIE (T X
P 4B 1 B SR AR -

- ®EWE(RKE2)

— KARELEET (RN
F12(e)) K

- BERBRAFEFABRZZ
MEEE (RMEE29) °
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(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 41.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BA 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:H K (#8)
(Continued)

—hF+ZA=t—HLFE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

AT R P at

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+—HILFE

FERARR ()

(Continued)

(0

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

(0

BB B R SR R IR AR

B AR AAKEES 2 HiE
AEBEARKZELEERER
MR D BERENEEHEY
BN EZZO®E  AIARE
Bzt ERE - NFHEAEERS
BREBRBRENE E2EEEHEE
Br (A REREMTHEE) -

o

o gin Bk

\;

IS GIEPNCIPASS- P IR RS
RIBEMERZTESBEHMM
AHEZRAFTARSMBERER
N BEEZHERBHARIL -EE
ARRIAZ R X5 R ERAM
SERNRAREZRSREEZIE
A RN BN REER A M ER
RSB BH o 0 48 H R RE D
R KEARREZRZAELZ
AERERAZBAREREKGEZ
MR E -

RS IR IR AR B HE
KRR 2B A R MA
SEARBILEZZREFE A
EREAATH INIER - B N EEE
BrazSgaEENEMBA
EEBE BB
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ¥ a= MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE® (1)
(Continued)

(0

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income or loss
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income
or loss of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &=

FERARR ()

(Continued)

(9]

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(I)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 2(f)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment property is stated in the statement of
financial position at fair value, unless they are still in
the course of construction or development at the end
of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment property
is accounted for as described in note 2(q)(v).

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease (see note 2(f)), and the same accounting policies
are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note
2(f).

(9]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F
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—hF+ZA=t—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBF® (1)
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

The freehold land and buildings held for own use are
stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being their fair value at the date
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

Revaluations are performed by qualified valuers with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
of these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
end of the reporting period.

The other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(1)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the properties revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the properties
revaluation reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &=

FERARR ()

(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

freehold land is not depreciated,

buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful life,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;

buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;

Leasehold
improvements

3 to 10 years or over
the remaining term
of the lease, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 2 to 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 3to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE® (1)
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the properties revaluation reserve
to accumulated losses and is not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

FERARR ()

(Continued)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as an
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 2(d));
and

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group,
or taken over from the previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE® (1)
(Continued)

(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged as expenses in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lumpsum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and the building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESiB% (i)
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (9) ¥HBTH

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
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of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value e
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Financial assets HEEE

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets “at fair value
through profit or loss” (“FVTPL"), “available-for-sale
financial asset” (“AFS financial assets”) and “loans
and receivables”. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HEBE® (1)
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (90 BMKEIE (&)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015

ERAFEZ
BERNEETNAEEHRE 2 H#
SR S oy B B A B A B A
2% BENERDIRERTAZ
At (ER) BE R
BEEFTRGEFTRLESRA (B
ERKERME AR RRED Z
—YENKBERFNEZEER-
RHRARE R EHITE) 2V
2 e R BREFHE 2 I

BHETAZMEWATIIZRERF
REERR D B/RAFER
AR 2 B ERRS

BAFEFSABG CHBEE
EVBEERTIFEELHE /I
ERAFEA ABDR  MBEE
DERR AP EFAEBR

WA EER MBI AIRES

FFEE:

o IERINEHHEMmE:
%

o RUIBHERE HBKASK
BirAERE BRIV T
BZAREn B HHIR
B ENRN %

s BRREEEZIIMETA
WAl BB RE T Ao



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

FERARR ()

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in the “other net gain/(loss)” line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 18.
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(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS Financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unguoted equity investments are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESiB% (i)
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (90 B IE (&)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:H % (#8)
(Continued)

el

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and other loan are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESiB% (i)
(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (90 B IE (&)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
the higher of:

. the amount of the obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

o the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized
in accordance with the revenue recognition
policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum
of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are trademarks and licenses that
are acquired separately and with finite useful lives
ranging from five to ten years and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(l)). Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.
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FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(i)

)

Development and formation costs

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site which
will be completed for sale and are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

The development costs comprise specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land, aggregate
cost of development, materials and supplies, wages
and other direct expenses, an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing costs capitalised (see note
2(s)). Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in selling the burial plots.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandises for resale and marble stones
is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost of burial plots developed for sale is determined
by an apportionment of the total development costs
(see note 2(i)) attributable to completed but unsold
units.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(k)

0)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Impairment of assets

(i)  Impairment of other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other receivables (Continued)

For trade receivables and other receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (that is the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z =T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

Impairment of other receivables (Continued)
In any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables and other receivables included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables and other receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments;

- intangible assets;

- deposits and prepayments;

- available-for-sale investments; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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BT 15 R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HiZE T —AF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHH %K ()

(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued) () EEREE)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) EBEERE (&)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s A IR AT B RS - RilfE
recoverable amount is estimated. FTEER YO EEE -

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (that is a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, every three months. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(I)(i) and (ii)).

(m) Employee benefits

(1)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(n) Share-based payments

(i)

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binomial Option Pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair value
of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly
to accumulated losses).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Share-based payments (Continued)

(i) Share options granted to consultants
Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair
values of the services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based compensation reserve),
when the counterparties render services, unless
the services qualify for recognition as assets.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br % ac st
For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(d), the amount of deferred tax recognized
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodies in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realissation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F

R M AL

—hF+ZA=t—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(p)

(@)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i)  Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of cremation
services, cemetery services, funeral arrangement
services and funeral services in funeral parlours
and funeral service centres under the Group’s
management is recognised when the services are
rendered.

(i) Sale of goods including tombstones

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
to the customers which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts and returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z T —AF+T-A=+T—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii)  Sales of burial plots

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue from sales of burial plots is recognised
when the contract is signed by the buyer, a
significant amount of deposits of the contracted
value received and the relevant identified burial
plots are delivered to the buyers. Deposits
and instalments received from buyers prior
to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under “receipts in
advance”.

Cemetery maintenance services

Revenue from the provision of cemetery
maintenance services is deferred and amortised
on a straight-line basis over the remaining
estimated service period.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br % ac st
For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n

(vii) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established. Dividend income
from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
The results of operations outside PRC (“non-PRC
operations”) are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a non-PRC operation (that is a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a non-PRC
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a non-PRC operation, all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes non-PRC operation that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and is not recognise in profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ES:B%E ()

(Continued)

(t) Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third

entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

F
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

FERATRR ()

(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Company's Executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F
3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand the
definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the Group's
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain key
management personnel services from management entities.

Change in presentation of consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income

In the current year, the directors of the Company decided
to change the classification of certain line items in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income by presenting management fee and
operating lease charges for hire of funeral parlours and
funeral service centres as part of the Group’s cost of sales
instead of selling expenses to better reflect the financial
information of the Group’s activities. Prior year figures of
RMB17,017,000 have been re-presented to reflect the new
presentation. The reclassification has no net effect on the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 H = - =

AT R P at

—hF+ZA=+t—HLHFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ERAHIIREEITITEMIE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BREEA([HFEBMERSGE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) All) (#8)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle (Continued)

Change in presentation of consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
(Continued)

The effect of changes in presentation for the prior year by

ERUBHREEN _Z-—FFZE
g—iiﬂﬂﬂ&—i——ﬁﬁ_
—=FENNFEIE (&)
HEBERAMEEKZEFZS G
28 (4E)

e BHELREMEERERMZS] L

line items presented in the consolidated statement of profit —FEEBZEINAIREHITEN
or loss and other comprehensive income is as follows: ™~
As previously

stated Adjustments Restated

ScRIFR 5 e E7

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFTT AREFTT AREF T

Cost of sales HHE R A (15,852) (17,017) (32,869)

Selling expenses HERX (24,009) 17,017 (6,992)

Change in loss —UFEEEE
for the year 2014 (39,861) - (39,861)
No consolidated statement of financial position as at R-T—NFE—A-BYE2IIEAR

1 January 2014 has been presented as the change in
accounting policy and re-classifications disclosed above have
no effects on the financial position of the Group presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect
of the end of the previous financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@)

(b)

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration
received and receivable for the services rendered to
customers and goods sold to customers. The amount
of each significant category of revenue during the year

4. EXRVRSBEH

(@)

=
EBRBREAREFREHRRS kM
EPHEEmmME W RkERZ
REZAFE-FRATTENRS
BhlzeBwmT:

is as follows:

2015 2014
—E—-A%F —ZT—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®ETT
Funeral services provided in rAEFREBRZ
funeral parlours and BEER
funeral service centres under BERBEH L
the Group's management RHt 2 BERE 45,048 47,816
Cremation services NAL AR 12,741 12,544
Funeral arrangement services BETHRT 3,067 4,289
Cemetery services 2R R - 3,191
Sale of burial plots HE i 736 1,808
Sale of tombstones HMIHE 40 -
Cemetery maintenance services  EE(E 4 RS 1 -
61,633 69,648
Segment information (b) oHMER

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by a mixture of both business
lines (products and services) and geography. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Company’s executive
directors (the "Executive Directors”), the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

(i)  Funeral services — Taiwan
Provision of funeral arrangement services to
funeral services deed holders in Taiwan.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BXHRSBEIH ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)

(i) Funeral services — Hong Kong
Provision of funeral arrangement services to
both funeral services deed holders and non-
funeral services deed holders in Hong Kong.

(iii)  Funeral services — the PRC

Provision of funeral, cremation and cemetery
services in funeral parlours and funeral
service centres in the PRC under the Group's
management, pursuant to the respective
management agreements entered into with the
owners of funeral parlours and funeral service
centres.

(iv) Funeral services — Vietnam
Sale of burial plots and tombstones and
provision of cemetery maintenance services in
Vietnam.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Executive Directors monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, receipts in advance, provisions and current
tax liabilities attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly
by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

(i) BERE-EE
REBABERESRZOEE
AMSERERFRLIEE A
REBELER -

(iii) FBERE —HE
IRIR BTE R R B AR T
DA NGB E 0D E R
W BN ERAEE
BIENEEELBEERES
ORREERE M REE R
ﬁ% °

(iv) ZEEARTS —HE
PR S Bt I AR N 4R
HEREERS-

DEIRE BERERE

ShRF 4 0 8RR 3R K o0 BB 0 Bid
BRME  QUTESR T IIEEE
REAMEDHEIGZEE BE
kafE:

DHEEBEBRRABEEIZ
BEWEE BENEERRDE
E-nERESREEERN D EES)
J"E‘fEZ 2 5 M AR FRIE - TR

HIE - BENAIBRERE UL
uBE BB ZEE-

Was KX T2 EZS
Z%E&%ﬁi‘kw
HEENERHEEP
FXmoBEEr®E
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(b) Segment information (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Segment results represent the earnings and loss of
each segment without allocation of valuation gain/
loss on investment property, other revenue and other
net gain/loss, central administration costs, finance
costs and income tax. This is the measure reported to
the Executive Directors for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, the Executive Directors
are provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income and expense from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation and amortisation, loss/
gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment,
impairment loss on other receivables, prepayments
written off, provision for future costs of delivering
funeral services under funeral services deeds, loss on
disposal of subsidiaries, income tax expenses, loss
on derecognition of assets and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBEXHRSBEIH (H)
(Continued)

DHRPER (&)

DESFAE BEREE (H)
DEERBEREEDMAELEZ BT
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Notes to the Financial Statements
=+ A
B A R B
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. B EXHRSHBEH (8\)
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Executive Directors for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment

EEREBE-—_ZT—THER_-F
—mNE+—_A=1+—RIEEY
EIRD IR E D EBRIBAAIT

of segment performance for the years ended 31 EERHEIIRES T ZERE
December 2015 and 2014 is set out below: IR
Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_E-AF+-A=+-BHLEE
Funeral services
BERE
Taiwan  Hong Kong PRC Vietnam Total
=1 Fig HE il Wit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARE®EFTT AREFn ARETR ARETR
Reportable segment revenue [R5 5 EMiE
~ Revenue from external - RENNAEP W
customers 2,318 749 57,789 171 61,633
Reportable segment (loss)/ AREDH
profit (B#8) /&7 (5,954) (303) 7,699 (1,453) (11)
Interest income FIEHA 12 - 1,265 1 1,278
Interest expenses FERZ 228 - - - 228
Depreciation and amortisation 74 [& 7 & [ 8
for the year 236 4 3,737 391 4,405
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE BELRELZ
plant and equipment Bi - (12) (177) - (189)
Impairment loss on property, — ¥1% - BiE R&E 2 RE
plant and equipment Bi 923 6 - - 929
Impairment loss on other Hih YA 2 REEE
receivables - - 130 - 130
Prepayments written off MR FHIE 760 - - - 760
Provision for future costs of ~ REBERIFZAIR M
delivering funeral services BERS 2 RRBAR
under funeral services deeds B 1,558 - - - 1,558
Income tax expenses FERRAZ 173 - 2,409 - 2,582
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 157,258 654 51,943 35,108 244,963
Deposit for acquisition of BARBBER—ERRZ
equity interests Bamoke
ina company 15,920 - - - 15,920
Additions to non-current RERREIERD
segment assets during NHEE
the year 47 - 3,058 382 3,487
Reportable segment liabilities 7355 5 & & 96,242 818 6,001 2,256 105,317

TELEBEERRLE —E-REFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

4. ERVRSBEH ()

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

(b)

DHRPER (&)

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-ME+-A=+—HItFE

Funeral services

BER%
Taiwan Hong Kong PRC Vietnam Total
) B H pelfes Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARET:T
Reportable segment revenue AT ¥R 25 B4
— Revenue from external —REIAREP Uz
customers 2,383 1,906 63,551 1,808 69,648
Reportable segment loss AHREDHER (2,215) (403) (575) (1,432) (4,625)
Interest income HEHA 18 - 316 1 335
Interest expenses FEHE 219 - - - 219
Depreciation and amortisation 4 fE 47 & R #4
for the year 224 45 3,794 298 4,361
Gain/(loss) on disposal HENE BEREE
of property, plant and Wi/ (E8)
equipment 41 9) (281) (10) (259)
Loss on derecognition of assets BUHMEREE 7 E518 - - 6316 - 6,316
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 11 &M &2 52 518 - - 796 - 796
Income tax expenses FBRAY - - 609 - 609
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 176,408 790 50,389 33,505 261,092
Additions to non-current RERNFEERED
segment assets during AHEE
the year 430 31 3,119 523 4,103
Reportable segment liabilities ~ A[ i &5 & & 97,100 779 6,482 2,329 106,690

There are no inter-segment sales during the year
(2014: Nil).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,

ERURSBEH ()

(b) DEBER (&)
&7 el 1R BE R

profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items: EBEREMEL % HK
2015 2014
“E-I1F —TmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TRT ARBEF T
Revenue I &
Total reportable segment revenue A ¥R & 7 SRUR S 4B 5E I
and consolidated revenue e s 61,633 69,648
Profit or loss Ha
Total reportable segment loss REBINEEFPEEZ
derived from Group's external AR D E B4R
customers (11) (4,625)
Valuation gains on investment WEYE 2 AW
property - 765
Other revenue H b U = 2,186 3,755
Other net gain/(loss) Hablezs/ (B518) %5 1,053 (1,217)
Finance costs B E AR (264) (414)
Unallocated head office and Ro@H R ArAXZ
corporate expenses
— Depreciation and — T E R
amortisation (955) (950)
— Auditors’ remuneration —IZEEN N & (813) (1,032)
— Legal and professional fee —EENEEER (964) (574)
— Staff cost (including —BImA
directors’ remuneration) (PRIEEEME) (5.818) (4,990)
— Operating lease charges: —EEHES L &K
minimum lease payments HERFEE (378) (149)
— Equity-settled share-based —AREEE R HE
payment expenses 2R - (1
- Others —H A, (1,219) (1,555)
Consolidated loss before taxation 43 & B HiRTE 12 (7,183) (10,987)
Assets EE
Total reportable segment assets ~ AJ¥RE D 308 ELE 244,963 261,092
Unallocated head office and RAOMBHRAREE
corporate assets
— Cash and cash equivalents —-RekReFEYD 5,988 14,952
— Deposit for acquisition of —ARER—H AR
equity interests in a company 7R 15,920 -
— Other deposits and —Hibige RIBNFIE
prepayments 161 709
— Property, plant and equipment ~ — 4% &= & R B 224 2,465
— Others —HAh, 3,835 3,877
Consolidated total assets REBEERE 271,091 283,095

TELEBEERRLE —E-REFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

—HEFT-ASt-BLFE
4. EXTRSBEH (M)

(b) Segment information (Continued) SEEE (&)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, LSTR85 BB
profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items: ERAMIBE = 4 ()
(Continued) i
2015 2014
—hE —ZT—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AREETTT
Liabilities &)
Total reportable segment liabilities 7] #4522 & B 4258 105,317 106,690
Unallocated head office and Ko R AREE
corporate liabilities 1,691 1,648
Consolidated total liabilities MEBEERE 107,008 108,338
Other items HttI5E
Interest income B A
Reportable segment total AmE S E R 1,278 335
Unallocated head office and RO BEH R
corporate total NEIFE | 486 1,120
Consolidated total RE KRR 1,764 1,455
Interest expenses FEREZ
Reportable segment total BE R F e 228 219
Unallocated head office and RORBIHR
corporate total NCIFRE 36 195
Consolidated total AR 264 414
Depreciation and amortisation P N 8
Reportable segment total AR A D ARER 4,405 4,361
Unallocated head office and RAOMBHBR
corporate total NCIFERE 955 950
Consolidated total IRA BT 5,360 5,311
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE &
plant and equipment HEEE
Reportable segment total ARED R 189 259
Unallocated head office and RAOMBHB R
corporate total NS 1,211 16
Consolidated total IRA RRARE 1,400 275
Impairment loss on property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment HIEEE
Reportable segment total AREDHRTE 929 -
Unallocated head office and RAOMBRHB R
corporate total NSIFCEE 116 -
Consolidated total LRE B 1,045 -
Impairment loss on other Hith e k1B 2
receivables Reportable REEE
segment total 130 -
Unreallocated head office and RAOMBHB R
corporate total NEIERR 252 -
Consolidated total RE 1R 382 -

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & —ZFT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BXHRSBEIH ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)
Geographical information HhEER

The following is an analysis of geographical location
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers;
and (i) the Group's property, plant and equipment,
investment property, prepaid lease payments,
intangible assets, deposit for acquisition of equity
interests in a company and deposits for hire of funeral
parlours and funeral services centres. The geographical
location of customers refer to the location at which
the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical locations of property, plant and
equipment, investment property, prepaid lease
payments, deposit for acquisition of equity interests
in a company and deposits for hire of funeral parlours
and funeral services centres are based on the physical
location of the assets under consideration. In the case
of intangible assets, it is based on the location of the
operation to these intangible assets are allocated.

UTTARO)ANEERBINRER
Wat: RNVAEEZME - BE R
R WEWE ANEEREA

BIZEE ARKEBR—HEARZ
oz NERBERENES
RIBHP O ZIRE ZFEER D
1T o B P 2 PR & Thde fR AR S
HAREmZE - W% BE &
R WEWE AENEEREA

RAREER —H AR w2 1R
& MR EE REERET O
2B RIAEBEERN
BRERUESEE-HAETE
EAINEDEZFELEEZR
BRESEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEFRSMEH (8)
(Continued)

(b) DEBEH (&)
HEEH (&)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

RASREFHRE ERBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—Z-1f —Z-mE —E-1% “E-QEF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB%TR ARETT AB%TR ARETT
The PRC (place of domicile) B (%) 57,789 63,551 16,516 20,361
Taiwan aE 2,318 2,383 41,495 26,965
Hong Kong N 749 1,906 173 405
Vietnam HiFg 177 1,808 1,216 1,282
3,844 6,097 42,884 28,652
61,633 69,648 59,400 49,013
Revenue from major products and services FTEEmRRRE Wz
2015 2014
—Z—iHF —FmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Funeral services provided in AEFEERE 2 BEER
funeral parlours and BERGH DR
funeral service centres under BiERD
the Group’s management 45,048 47,816
Cremation services NV RS 12,741 12,544
Funeral arrangement services BETHERD 3,067 4,289
Cemetery services B2ERS - 3,191
Sales of burial plots SHE E i 736 1,808
Sales of tombstones HREE 40 -
Cemetery maintenance services 2 E{E4E R 1 -
61,633 69,648
Information about major customers FTEEFEH

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
revenue from any single external customer does not
amount to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/ 5. HtikSRHEMKE (&5
(LOSS) iR)B8
2015 2014
—Z—hF —E—MmF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Other revenue Hfthlr 2
Interest income on bank deposits |ITHERZ
FEMA 1,764 1,455
Total interest income on financial I IEIR N FAEET A
assets not at B WBEE
fair value through profit or loss Z B AL FE 1,764 1,455
Sundry income FEIEA 116 237
Rental income from investment wEWMEZ
property WA 295 170
Sub-leasing rental income AL WA 11 12
Consultancy income AR TEHA - 1,881
2,186 3,755
Other net gain/(loss) Kt (85H)
3]
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries &M B R FEE
(note 33) (FfF5E33) - (796)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment Rz EE (1,400) (275)
Deficit on revaluation of land and BEBR LR
buildings held for own use Bz S hEA (2) (420)
Net exchange gain M 5 Y55 5 58 2,337 3
Net gain on terminated and lapsed ERIERKRRZ
funeral services deeds BERFRL
WesFaa 395 35
Net realised and unrealised B BEAFER
(loss)/gain on financial assets AB#HZ
designated as at fair value MG EEY
through profit or loss EERRARER
(E18)
Wes Faa (277) 236
1,053 (1,217)
3,239 2,538

TELEBEERRLE —E-REFFR

.

107



v

108

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

6. FRMAIEGIR

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

BRI TR, (FHA) T 3R

the followings: BT
2015 2014
—E—4Lf —E—MF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETFIT
(a) Finance costs (a) MERE
Interest on bank borrowings and RITEEREME
other loans R FE 264 414
Total interest expenses on WIELA R FEFT A
financial liabilities not at fair EnzemaE
value through profit or loss FE RS B 264 414
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BIRZE (RIFEE
emoluments) )
Salaries, wages and other benefits He -IER
H {to 128 17,718 18,779
Contributions to defined JE BB TR K
contribution retirement plans ETEIH R 2,188 2,082
19,906 20,861
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &=
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

—E-RF+-_A=+—BILEE
6. BRINAIEIE ()

2015 2014
—E-hF — &
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TRT AREEF T
() Other items (o HMIEH
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE AT 1E & FR A 8
payments 82 82
Auditors' remuneration 2% SRR B 5 813 1,032
Cost of inventories FEKA 8,421 6,996
Gross rental income from WEMERSIWABER
investment property less direct BEERIARKEZT
outgoing of RMBnil ZE-MFE: AR
(2014: RMBnil) ) 295 170
Depreciation e 5,278 5,229
Operating lease charges for M B R BLEE
property, plant and equipment: ESank
minimum lease payments K& KRR
— rented premises —MAmE 785 830
Less: sub-leasing rental R AR A
income (11) (12)
774 818
— hire of equipment — AR 187 186
— hire of funeral parlours and —HABEER
funeral service centres AR ARTS A 0 10,586 12,986
Operating lease charges: KERER T s AEE
contingent rents
— hire of funeral parlours and —HABEER
funeral service centres TR ARTE A 0 576 642
Impairment loss on o fth pE U RIE 2
other receivables VEREN, SB= 382 -
Impairment loss on property, W BERE&E
plant and equipment RIEEE 1,045 -
Prepayments’ written off (note (i) i E5TE ZIB (M EE() ) 760 -
Provision for future costs of RIE B EIRTE L
delivering funeral services RHBEERS 2
under funeral services deeds RORBK A4 1,558 -
Loss on derecognition of assets BUBEREE CE8
(note (ii)) (B =EGi) ) - 6,316
Equity-settled share-based VAR #E 45 IR 19
payment expenses BER MR - 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

6.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
Note (i):

During the year ended 31 December 2015, prepaid commission
to agents of the Group amounting to approximately RMB760,000
(2014: RMBnil) were written off because the agents went into
bankruptcy and accordingly the Group can no longer enjoy the
agency services nor have the refund from the agents.

Note (ii):

This represents loss arising from the derecognition of property, plant
and equipment, inventories, prepayment upon the termination of
operation of Chongging Zhong County Funeral Parlour ( EEE T &
SEFE (%) ("ZCFP") for the year ended 31 December 2014,

Pursuant to a management agreement dated 12 November 2009
("ZCFP Management Agreement”) entered into by Chongging
Xibao Funeral Technology Company Limited (“Chongging Xibao"),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Zhong County
Mortuary Service Centre (the “ZCFP Owner”), ZCFP Owner
agreed to engage Chongging Xibao to manage the ZCFP from
15 November 2009 to 14 November 2029. During the tenure of
the ZCFP Management Agreement, Chongging Xibao is entitled
to all profits generated from the provision of funeral services in
ZCFP and is responsible for all the losses and expenses incurred
for the provision of such services and is required to pay an annual
management fee to the ZCFP Owner.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors of the
Group reassessed the performance of ZCFP and considered that
due to the continuing loss-making of ZCFP, it is of the Group's best
interest to terminate the ZCFP Management Agreement.

Accordingly, a recission agreement (“Rescission Agreement”) and
a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) were
entered into between Chongqging Xibao and the ZCFP Owner
on 19 November 2014 and 28 November 2014 respectively. The
ZCFP Management Agreement was terminated with immediate
effect. As a result, Chongqing Xibao has ceased the operation of
ZCFP. Pursuant to the Recession Agreement and the Supplemental
Agreement, ZCFP Owner agreed to pay an aggregate of
RMB2,324,000 to Chongging Xibao for compensation of the
loss on property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount
of RMB7,124,000, inventories of RMB269,000, prepayment for
usage of facilities of ZCFP of RMB1,247,000. The total loss on
derecognition of assets of RMB6,316,000 was included in “other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

FERGRAZHAER

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2015 2014
—ZE-RfF —T-MEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREF T
Current tax: BVEAR 18 :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (note (c)) A B b 2 TS AR
(Ft5E©)
Current period 7 B 2,409 1,141
Over-provision in prior years W EHERE - (532)
2,409 609
Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax BEhEREN
(note (d)) (HMt3Ed))
Under-provision in prior years MEFERETR 173 -
Total iS5 2,582 609
Notes: Bt aE

(a)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for both years.

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands, Samoa and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI") for both years.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to Enterprise
Income Tax rate at 25% (2014: 25%) in accordance with the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprises Income
Tax (REEAR LTI B RS HE) except that Chongging
Xizhou Funeral Service Company Limited (“Chongqing
Xizhou"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% (2014:
15%) in accordance with FAEf R SEMEHERE,
which is retrospectively applied to Chongging Xizhou from
January 2011 and, provided that the conditions precedent to
entitlement of preferential tax rate are fulfilled by Chongqing
Xizhou in each of subsequent years, the preferential tax rate
can be applied to Chongging Xizhou up to December 2020.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, Chongging Xizhou is
subject to enterprise income tax rate at 15% (2014: 15%).

HRAEEXMEFERECETEE
EEAERBOR R - SR B F
ST R -

REENMIEFZ B AU SR
5 BEEDREBRIES ([RER
LEE]) ADERER 2 EMHE-

R BEE 2B RARBRIEREA
REMBEMEMERLE25% (=ZF
—F 1 25% ) 2 ERTER RN
WARNB ZWEL2ENBAREED
BARZERGAER AR ([EEHE])
AREASARECEMEHERR
15% (ZZ—F:15% ) 2 BEH
RNT - mMEEHEARNBYERERR
BEBMRE_ZT——F— A MiKH=E
BEHANEESFRENZEEERR
7RG AEESER —EHE
REERRE-_ZF-_FFE+-_H-
HE-_T—AF+-A=+—HIHF
& EEHEBIEISY% (ZT—NF:
15% ) Z ¥ TS B R W F -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

7.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. R8RE8FAZFRER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (#)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MisE: (&
(d)  Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bau Shan”), a (d) AREIEEMBRRELEDRERK
direct subsidiary of the Company, and Bao De Life Enterprise MAERRA ([E L) RARRAMEE
Co., Ltd. ("Bau De"), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, MEBAREREDEXRNABRAA
are subject to Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax at 17% (2014: (TEE]) AERBAEMETIEREM
17%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with the MRBARE  RERBEMA17% (=
Income Tax Act and other relevant laws in Taiwan. T—NFE: 7% )BNEEDERS
(e)  Bao Son Life Company Limited (“Bao Son Life”) and Hoan () ARRZEEIZEWBAAE L
Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation (“HLV Duc Hoa"), indirect wEAEERAR(ELESR] R
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are subject Hoan Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation
to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2014: 20%) on (THLV Duc Hoa |) ZEZE AR ¥ #7 4H E
taxable profits determined in accordance with the relevant VAR ROEIRTE E 2 FERREE FHE20%
laws and regulations in Vietnam. No provision for Vietnam (ZZ—UF:20% ) 2 X miErE
Corporate Income Tax has been made as Bao Son Life and REEFTISH o BAE 1L A a8 & HLV Duc
HLV Duc Hoa have no assessable profits for both years. Hoa i A 8 F 5 35 M FE aR B i 1) + BUigk
ERLHE D EMERELBE-
(f)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss at f  IHEARERAE BRI RSE
applicable tax rates: BZEE:
2015 2014
—Z-a%F —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARBFT
Loss before taxation K7 Al & 18 (7,183) (10,987)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, 1% 883 AN EHEE
calculated at the rates applicable to Mg el AR HR
loss in the tax jurisdictions concerned 318 2 B Rt E 2
BRI A E IR R ENIA (1,225) (2,113)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1~ a] 035 2 B 5 2 #1 76
2 6,670 3,699
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEARBBAZHBHE (4,382) (611)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & W Fi 75 B9 18 2 Fi 75
28 681 671
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax ~ B)VFABEFE RHER
not recognised in prior years RAABE BGTE - (196)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BATFERENR
(EBFER ) 173 (532)
Others =) 665 (309)
Actual tax expense ERBIIAR 2,582 609
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+ 2
B A R B
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 8. EEHM

Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

REFE (RAMER) F383fF & (A
Al (WBEEFEMNGER) RO E28847

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of FATFHEBEZESHFMOT :
Directors) Regulation is as follows:
2015
ZZ-1f
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EEna Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
HL 3t
e FaRERN BETEL HEHR o h
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
UN: & AERBTR AEBTR AR®TTR AR®TT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai el 975 2,902 40 - 3917
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEBEAE 195 13 12 - 320
Independent non-executive directors BV HHITEE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai EREE4E 57 - - - 57
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B-REE 57 - - - 57
Mr. Lee Koon Hung FEAKAE 57 - - - 57
1,341 3,015 52 - 4,408
2014
—E-mE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EFENA Fees allowances bonuses contributions Total
RIKEF
e Fo R [h=piE SRR FE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF AREFT AREFTT ARETR AREFL
Executive directors HITEE
M. Liu Tien-Tsai BN e 953 955 70 - 1,978
Mr. Kim Eun Back SERBLAE 191 115 37 - 343
Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh THRELE (RZT—NF
(resigned on 1 September 2014) NA—BEET) 286 360 40 6 692
Independent non-executive directors BV HBITEE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai ERELAE 56 - - - 56
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B-REE 56 - - - 56
Mr. Lee Koon Hung FRAEE 56 - - - 56
1,598 1,430 147 6 3,181
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8.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS(Continued)

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to any
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for both years.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the director held share
options under the Company’s share option scheme. The
details of the share options are disclosed in note 39.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2014: two) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments of the remaining three (2014: three) individuals
are as follows:

8.

9.

EEHM ()

RMEFE  NABRESEFREDTM
R AEEBERTAES T
P B R IIA SR IIAAR R B 2
BER) SIFRRERAR(E -

RZE—RAFR_ZE—NF+ A
—t—H EEHEAQRERETE
TE T BEARAE - BEARAE 2 1B ROKIRE39
W

EETWAL

ARAELERSHFALTEERE (ZF
—MEFMB)EE - HH MR EsE
B-HEBR=R(ZT—WF:=R)&S
ALz FHM@EmT

2015 2014
- 2k - 3 —FE—HF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFIT

Salaries, allowances and e R REMER
other benefits 1,192 1,388
Discretionary bonuses FIEIEAT 99 78

Contributions to retirement RRE A ET B

benefit scheme 21 19
1,312 1,485

The emoluments of the three (2014: three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

=R (ZE-OF:ZR)&EHFALZ
FMA T TIIEE

2015 2014
—E—5LfF —E-AF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A8 N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent £ £1,000,00078 7T (FHE R
to RMB812,600 (2014: AR#812,6007T
RMB794,200) —E—F:
AR #794,2007T) ) 3 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &=

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9.
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the three (2014: three) highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

There was no tax effect on each component of the other
comprehensive loss for both years.

LOSS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB9,402,000 (2014: RMB11,142,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2014: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss
per share amounts presented for the year ended
31 December 2015 and 2014 as the impact of the
share options had anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share amounts presented. Therefore, the
calculation of the diluted loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB9,402,000 (2014: RMB11,142,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2014: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

10.

1.

AT R P at

—E-RAF+_A=+—HLEEE
REFmAL ()

RREFEA NEEHRERTA =%
T-FE: ZR)ZERFALTIAX

/,ﬂfﬁiﬁiiﬁ FERIMAZIR AR

KB 2 SR S RRERERE

HEth2EEHR

PAREFERN SO EREMEE
EEXE G E-

FAFHEBARMEGR
(a) BREAEA
SRERERDREEAREE

AFEfR B 1B A R 1#9,402,0007T
—E—F: AR¥11,142,000

70) RE R B BT AR INE T
£742,500,0000% (= -=—@¢-
742,500,0000% /@) &

(b) ER#EEEE
HE_Z—AFER-_ZT—NF

+—BA=Z+—HLFE 25
2EREABESETEELS
B HAAEEREZEHHMET
ZEREABERESEAREE
g E It BB EEE TR
BARNBIHEABRGEEBARE
9,402,000t (ZE—HF: AR
#11,142,00000) R F RN B 1T
-8 R DN AE 45 8742,500,0000%
(ZZ=— E¢ 742,500,000% &
BR)ETE

TELEBEERRLE —E-REFFR
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12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB
Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme administrated and operated by the local
municipal government. The Group’s PRC and Vietnam
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to scheme
based on certain percentage of the relevant portion of the
payroll of all qualifying employees in accordance with the
relevant regulations in the PRC and Vietnam respectively. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The Group is also required to participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes administered and
operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance of Taiwan for
employees employed in Taiwan. Under the scheme, the
employers are required to make contributions to the scheme
at 6% of the employees’ relevant income. Contributions to
the schemes vest immediately.

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan managed by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group (the employer) and its employees makes monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earning as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The contributions from each of the
employer and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500
per month (HK$1,250 prior to June 2014) and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of retirement benefits associated with the retirement benefit
schemes beyond the contribution described above.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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AT R P at

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & —ZFT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. BE BERRE
(a) (a)
Land and
buildings
held for Furniture,
own use fixtures and
carried at Leasehold office Motor  Construction
fair value ~ improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#EER
ERAFEE
Ll +d R RER
THREF HERE  HOZRRE RE ERIE i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFT  ARETR ARETx  ARETR  ARETR
Cost or valuation BFHMHE
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-F-H 29,409 19,742 12,465 5827 5,152 72,595
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences NEEREREZTE (639) (13) 71 6 - (575)
Additions RE - 207 988 1,214 - 2,409
Reclassification to development and BERRRUMAENHE
formation costs (note 19) (BizE19) (2,597) - - - (4,821) (7.418)
Construction expenditure capitalised BEERZ TRAX - - - - 1,694 1,694
Transfers E S - 628 1363 - (1,991) -
Disposals HE - (1,832) (324) (1,263) - (3419)
Surplus on revaluation BB 965 - - - - 965
Derecognised on termination of operation FIHEEEEREERIERR
of ZCFP (note 6(c)(i) (Pizr6(c)i)) - (8,768) (218) - - (8,986)
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A ARIRERR
(note 33) (Fi1%E33) - (260) - - - (260)
Reclassification to investment property (note 16) B ENFEH 5 (M6 (3,724) - - - - (3,724)
Less: Elimination of accumulated depreciation B BEESH (187) - - - - (187)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-EmE+-A=+-H 23,227 9,704 14,345 5,784 34 53,094
Representing: Bp:
Cost PES - 9,704 14,345 5,784 34 29,867
Valuation - 2014 “E-MERE 23227 - - - - 301
23,221 9,704 14,345 5,784 34 53,094
At 1 January 2015 i “*ﬁgfﬂfﬂ 23,221 9,704 14,345 5,784 34 53,094
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences 9\‘%[%%32 va 305 2 88 63 4 482
Additions RE - 9% 619 - - 714
Construction expenditure capitalised BEERZ TRAY - - - - 2,773 2,773
Transfers E L - 732 14 - (746) -
Disposals HE - 1 (4,105) (447) - (4,573)
Deficit on revaluation EhE4Y (621) - - - - (621)
Less: Flimination of accumulated depreciation W BB HE (179) - - - - (179)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+-A=1-H 2,732 10,532 10,961 5,400 2,065 51,690
Representing: B
Cost A - 10,532 10,961 5,400 2,065 28,958
Valuation - 2015 “E-nEfRE 22,732 - - - - 22,732
22,732 10,532 10,961 5,400 2,065 51,690
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B 5 R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

14. % -BEREM (&)

(Continued)
(a) (Continued) (a) (&)
Land and
buildings
held for Furniture,
own use fixtures and
carried at Leasehold office Motor  Construction
fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#EEA
ERATE
il 74 & KER
THREF BERE  WHOERE RE ERIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AR¥ETr  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETT  ARBTR
Accumulated depreciation and impairment RHAERAE
loss
At 1 January 2014 W-Z-mE-A—B - 7612 4224 2,781 - 14,617
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences NEEREREZ RS (5 12 18 4 - 29
Charge for the year FRT 192 1,731 2317 989 - 5,29
Elimination on disposals HERHE - (1,781) (253) (920) - (2,954)
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) &K B A AIFE 8 (M3E33) - 43) - - - (43)
Derecognised on termination of operation of FLEFEERERRARR
ZCFP (note 6(c)(i) (Hi (i) - (1738) (124) - - (1,862)
Elimination on revaluation g (187) - - - - (187)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-ME+=A=1-H - 5793 6,182 2,854 - 14,829
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-R5-A-H - 5,793 6,182 2,854 - 14,829
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences NEERERZ RS - 14 5 1) - 112
Charge for the year FRT 179 1,390 2,840 869 - 5,278
Impairment loss RiEBE - 804 P - - 1,045
Elimination on disposals HERLH - (1) (2,752) (383) - (3,146)
Elimination on revaluation BERHE (179 - - - - (179)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ2-R2%+-A=1+-H - 7,99 6,567 3,382 - 17,939
Carrying amounts EEE
At 31 December 2015 RZZ2-R2%+-A=1+-H 22,732 2,542 4,3% 2,018 2,065 33,751
At 31 December 2014 RZE-EE+-A=1+-8 23221 3911 8,163 2,930 34 38,265
(b) Had the revalued land and buildings held for own use (b) WHEERZEEH L RESF

been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the

TIARASR R AT &R - BREE

carrying amounts would have been: AT
2015 2014
—E—-5Lf —EF-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARKETF T
Land and buildings T RIEF 18,981 18,887
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

14. Y% -BERE&Mm (#8)

(0 MEZLFEE

(i)

RFEER

TREJINBEPRRIZER
MRS ENREEYEN
RVE FRAEBMBR
HFERNEI1RAFEFEE
BEN=MAFEEMR - RF
B ERENERE2EM
(B Rl = {82 A By 8 A (B0 AT
BRUELRERMEENT

F-EfBE-RAE
—EmAEFERQT
B BEREEXAE
R EREERMS
MR T B R E

F_EREAEZ
BwAE(MIESR
Z AR AE) &
ERQVE AMEBAE
ZA BRI RINE
—BRAE- TAEE
BAERILENISH
BEAE2EZBAE

ERIEE : AEEw
FABEHAELE
ATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

14. % -BEREM (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(Continued)

() Fair value measurement of properties (0 VEZLATEEZ (E)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) R FEER(E)
Fair value at
31 December
2015 Fair value measurements
RZZ-1f as at 31 December 2015 categorised into
+Z8 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
=+-H RZ2-1f+-f=+-AZ
ZOFE LTEHERES
B | ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
The Group 350 AERBFT AE%TR AE%TR  AR%RTR
Recurring fair value BENLTEME
measurement
Freehold land and buildings KAEELH
- Taiwan kEF-aiE 20,931 - - 20,931
Buildings - The PRC BF-HE 1,801 - - 1,801
22,732 - - 22,732
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AT R P at

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & —ZFT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ -BER&E (&)

(Continued)
() Fair value measurement of properties (0 MEZALAFETZ (E)
(Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) R-FEERE
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2014 categorised into
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZE-IF
+-A=t-H “E-METZA=T-RZ
ZATE ATEIERER
F-E F-E 5CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT ARETFL ARETT
Recurring fair value measurement S HHEATFERE
Freehold land and buildings KAEETH
- Taiwan kgF-5E 21,386 - - 21,386
Buildings - The PRC BF-4 1,841 - - 1,841
23,227 - - 23,227

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, and Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers into/out of fair value
hierarchy levels as of the date of event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

All of the Group’s freehold land and buildings
held for own use were revalued as at 31
December 2015. The valuations were carried
out by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting
Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2015
and 2014, an independent firm of chartered
surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of properties being valued.
The Group’s directors have discussed with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation are
performed at each interim and annual reporting
date.

REBEE_ZT—HFE_ZF
—ME+-A=+—HItF
EE-REB EF_BrNE=
BB miEih REBE 2
R AR S A B s B
WA 2 IR IR B
BRAFEERNE A KE
$ o

RZE—RF+-A=+—
B FEAREREERZ
KAERIHRIEFHEE
- REBEE_E—RHER
E-WFEF+-_A=+—H1
FE HERY LAGEED
EFTTEH R YRR AR
HELRE A =6
RKEENHEEERRARE
T ESEPHERFERS
AHETHER  AEEE
=B 8 E'Jiﬁfﬁﬂuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ
PEERER
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—F—RAF+_A=+—HIFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BER®{HE (&)

(Continued)
() Fair value measurement of properties (0 VEZLATEEZ (E)
(Continued)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value (il BEZE=ELFE;TEZE
measurements A
Valuation Unobservable
techniques input Range
fhERH FUHRBAE il

2015 2014
—E-if “g-mE

Freehold land and buildings — Taiwan  Direct comparison approach  Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (20%) to 15%  (20%) to 15%

KAEBDH BT -5E BEIEBE MEETHEE 20%)E15%  (20%)E15%
Buildings — The PRC Direct comparison approach  Property-specific adjusting rate (5%) to 8% 4% t0 8%
BF-FH ERLEE MERTREE (5%)Z8% 4%ZE8%
The fair value of properties held for own use RNEERFEFEEBRZY
located in Taiwan and the PRC is determined X2 AFEDEREELR
using direct comparison approach by reference EET BE2EBAHLEEY
to the market price of comparable properties ECTE URBERHZ
and adjusted for building quality, location of BFEE MEME LR
the properties and timing of the reference EEFE -

transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 H = - =

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(i)

AT R P at

—hF+ZA=+t—HLHFE

14. Y% -BERE&Mm (#8)

() Fair value measurement of properties (0 MEZAFEEZE (E)
(Continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value (i) BEFE=ZELFHEFTEZE
measurements (Continued) #(4E)
The movements during the period in the balances B B =B R FER
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as EEBREYHIOT:
follows:
Freehold
land and Freehold
buildings land Buildings
- Taiwan - Vietnam - The PRC Total
kAR K AKE
T REF it kS
&4 -HE —-HE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT ARBETFTL ARBTF T
At 1 January 2014 \=F-mE—F-A 24,564 2,601 2,044 29,409
Depreciation charge for the year ~ AFEHTER Y (139) = (48) (187)
Reclassification to development — #HE RN AEH D18
and formation costs - (2,597) - (2,597)
Effect of foreign currency INBEREENTE
exchange differences (635) (4) - (639)
Reclassification to investment ENOEEREME
property (note 16) (BizE16) (3,724) - - (3,724)
Surplus on revaluation EftRH
— recognised in other -REMZABERR:
comprehensive loss, FATMEERER]
included in “properties
revaluation reserve” 1,385 - - 1,385
— recognised in profit or loss, —RERER FA
included in “other net [Hteas/ (&518)
gain/(loss)" FHE] (65) - (355) (420)
At 31 December 2014 T4
+-A=1t—-H 21,386 - 1,841 23,227
At 1 January 2015 \—Z-H%F—A—A 21,386 - 1,841 23,227
Depreciation charge for the year ~ AFETER T (141) - (38) (179)
Effect of foreign currency INBEREZENTE
exchange differences 305 - - 305
Deficit on revaluation SiEE
~ recognised in other -REMPEBERR &
comprehensive loss, included ATMESREE]
in “properties revaluation
reserve” (619) - - (619)
— recognised in profit or loss, ﬁATEﬁﬁﬁEa A
included in “other net Httas/ (B518)
gain/(loss)” /?%EJ - - ) 2)
At 31 December 2015 A\ZZ—-RE
+ZA=1+-H 20,931 - 1,801 22,732
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences FIEEBRZMEZINEER
of properties held for own use are recognised in ER BN EL#E]
other comprehensive loss in “foreign currency Tz HMEHEBERER-

translation reserve”.
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14. % -BEREM (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(d) The carrying amount of freehold land and buildings
pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings
were RMB17,034,000 (2014: RMB17,462,000) (note
26) as at 31 December 2015.

(e) Impairment loss

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
directors of the Company conducted a review of
the Group's property, plant and equipment and
determined that certain of the Group's leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and office equipment
are specifically identified to be impaired because the
segments for which these assets are used, mainly the
Funeral Service — Taiwan and Funeral Service — Hong
Kong, sustained continuing loss and in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, these items of leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and office equipment
have no or little commercial value. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of RMB1,045,000 in respect of these
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and office
equipment have been recognised during the year.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015

(d)

(e)

R-E—RF+-_A=+—H 2
EHIEAAEERITEEERS
TOKAEREL M N FHEREE
B AR#17,034,0007T (ZZE—
F: AR#17,462,0007T) (K7t
26) °

REEE
HEZZTZ—AF+=A=+—AH
IFFEE ARRESHAEE Y
¥ BELSEETER WET
REBETHEMERE - RM-
HERPHAEREERIETE AR
B RAAFEAZEEENDE
(FEREERE -8 ERBEER
B-BB)FELEER mARQ
REERE ZSHEMERE.
FREBEBRFAZTREEBE L
EoEE ) EFEEE B ®
FAEHRREEZSEHEDEE
&R KB RPN AZREAR
B8 A AR H1,045,0007T °
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. MFHEE AR

2015 2014

—ZE—hf —E—MmF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETIT

At 1 January wn—H—H 3,753 3,835
Amortisation charge for the year RNEFHIHER (82) (82)
At 31 December R+=—H=+—H 3,671 3,753

Analysed for reporting purposes as: L2 B IO A

Current assets MEEE 82 82
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,589 3,671
3,671 3,753

16.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in

AERBHEERARGEBRRTANT

“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of BHx] e
profit or loss.
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. EMR
2015 2014
—E-AHEFE —E—-mF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TT AREFTT
At fair value BAYE
At 1 January Rn—HA—AH 4,375 -
Transfer from property, plant and EEYE WERE&E
equipment (note 14) (MF3E14) - 3,724
Effect of foreign currency exchange  HMNESTE H =R A2 (5T A
differences, included in [DE 5 )
“foreign currency translation
reserve” 63 (114)
Fair value adjustment to RIB&EIEH 2
profit or loss N EFHE = 765
At 31 December W+—_RA=+—H 4,438 4,375

TELEBEERRLE —E-REFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment property

0

(ii)

(iii)

Fair value hierarchy
The investment property is measured at Level 3
valuation.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were
no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

The Group's investment property was revalued as
at 31 December 2015. The valuations for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited, an independent firm
of chartered surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The
Group's directors have discussed with the surveyors on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

Valuation
techniques

fH{EH

—hF+ZA=t—HLFE

16. WM ()

BREWMEZ ANFEE
(i) L2 FEER

BREMEEE=_EHEFE-

Eutifsz FE B
[ 2 A a2 ik o

AEBZREVER-F

T-A=1t—H#7TE

—A=t-

F_EBME=

— R4
HoRERE

“E-RFR-F-MFTA

=t+—RLEFE  HERBL

HEE

BEMEABEEMNEERARQ
AIETT - B BB R

KEFER A LA E

EhHELFEERS BHETHE
B AEBEEECD BRI R

BERERGEEER

Freehold land - Taiwan
KAERELH-8E

Direct comparison approach

BRILEE

The fair value of investment property located in Taiwan
is determined using direct comparison approach by
reference to the market price of comparable properties
and adjusted for location and land size of the
properties.

During the year, the Group's investment property
amounting to RMB4,438,000 (2014:4,375,000) was
held under trust arrangements.
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(i) FHEZE=FELFEIAEZEH
Unobservable
input Range
FUHEHAE #E
2015 2014
—g-If ZZ-MmE
Property-specific adjusting rate (15%) t0 4%  (20%) to 5%
MERTERER (15%)F4%  (20%)Z5%
Cé/%”z&é%%z/&ﬂ?@ﬁﬁ
ﬁ%%ZﬁE ' jﬁdﬁ%%ZFﬁEf@
A MEEELHFE-
(i) RERN RAEBRBEALZHFE
ZIREWMHE /R AREAL,438,0007T
—ET—MMF: AR %4,375,000
JT) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

AT R P at

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
2015 2014
—ZE—hf —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBEF T
Trademarks and licenses BEREFUE
Cost: BE:
At 1 January and 31 December KR—A—BER+=ZA=+—H 19 19
Accumulated amortisation: REtiges:
At 1 January and 31 December K—RA—BR+=ZA=+—H 17 17
Carrying amounts: IR {E:
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 2 2

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT 18. 6 ESEAFEHIABEZ

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS MEEE
2015 2014
—E—hF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TXT ARBEF T
Mutual funds/unit trusts, BEHES BARAEFZ
at fair value ~NEE
Established in Taiwan (note (i) R A B (FFEG)) 34,777 35,917
Structured deposits, BT I REG))
at fair value (note (ii)) - 10,000
34,777 45,917

-
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(i

According to the Mortuary Service Administration
Act (BZE M) in Taiwan, which was first
promulgated on 17 July 2002 and further amended
on 1 July 2003 and 4 July 2007, the Group has to
deposit 75% of the gross receipt of each funeral
services deed entered into after 31 July 2003 in
financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies.

The trust monies have been invested, in mutual funds
and unit trusts in Taiwan, which were managed
by fund managers of these financial institutions in
Taiwan. The mutual funds and unit trusts comprise a
basket of financial assets including local and foreign
currencies bank deposits, bonds and equity securities
listed in Taiwan and other foreign stock markets.

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL are presented
within “operating activities” as part of changes in
working capital in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. The Group has obtained a net realised and
unrealised loss of RMB277,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: gain of RMB236,000). The
net realised and unrealised loss of the above financial
assets are recorded in “other net gain/loss” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The financial assets above offer the Group the
opportunity for return through fair value gain. They
have no fixed maturity and coupon rate.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015

—hF+ZA=t—HLFE

18. HEBBLAFEHHARSZ
MERE (§)

BER-_ZEZ-_FtAT+EHE
REHBINR_FEZE=F+H—H
RZETLFLAMBE—HE
R BEREETIEGN  AEBE
NEETRBETHRRN TS =
FHA=ZT—HBFUZEER
ERBZAOW AR 275%1ER

&

EREEERENGENERES
LEMEABEBEE REAEZ
FRETRBBZESKER
B BBREGREMEMH—&T
MEEEEKR  BRAMNINEE
BRITER EREREMINER
mEMmZEFREARES -

BERBRAFEFABE ZUE
ﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%%%wﬁ
BINE ERAYELES®
— BN -BE_T—RF+_-A
=T—HLEFE AEEESFSA
EMUMWEZE“ﬁﬁxﬁ
REER(ZZ2—NF s AR
MB6mWﬂ B EEY
""""" FWR RSN FEERNGSIE
§M(ﬁﬁw s /R EEE |
BE o

AR AR AR
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(i)  As at 31 December 2015, structured deposits
represented capital protected deposits with notional
amount of RMBnil (2014: RMB10,000,000) which
carries interest at 0% (2014: 0% to 3.9%).
Management has the option of disposing the
structured deposits at any time by paying a
management fee.

The structured deposits are designated as fair value
through profit or loss at initial recognition.

19. DEVELOPMENT AND FORMATION COSTS

18. HERBAFEHFARGZ
MBRE (W)

iy R-—ZET—RE+-_A=+—8"
ERUETFREARETEAAR
MET(ZE—NWF: AR
10,000,0007T) * F & £0% (=
T—PF 0% E3.9% ) 2R AT
e BREAI NI EIRERE
ZEEBUETROHAIANER
;ﬁo
HEEMT ARV ERBIE TR
ANFEEFABREEK

19. AR REIBF

2015 2014
—E-i¥F —TmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBTT
Development and formation costs  F3 %% & A 37 Ak 7K
— burial plots under — AR E 2 R EM
development for sale 14,333 14,860

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for burial plots construction in a
cemetery site which will be completed for sale by burial plot
and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

B MBS AR A I — BE B E P SE X
FHEZEMZ RBERA WA
AERFEMEN ZBRIEETIRK-

20. INVENTORIES 20. &8
2015 2014
—E—-4Lf —E—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBEF T
Merchandises for resale BEEM 589 569
Completed burial plots BRIEH 2,030 173
Marble stones KA 73 61
2,692 803

The carrying amount of inventories sold and recognised
as an expense and included in “cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss amounted to
RMB8,421,000 (2014: RMB6,996,000) in the year.

FARREBRIT RS ELABETR
MHERA] AZEEFEEREAEAA
R 8,421,000 (ZE—MF: AR
6,996,0007T ) °

TELEBEERRLE —E-REFFR

129



v

130

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 1%

s MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. B REfMEK R

2015 2014
—E—hfF —ET—MF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AEETIT
Trade receivables (note (c) and (9)) B 5 WA (M 5E(0) S (g)) 374 244
Other receivables (note (d)) H b e R IE (M5Ed)) 2,908 6,418
Less: allowance for impairment B OREBERE (Me)
loss (note (e)) (1,009) (1,009)
1,899 5,409
Loans and receivables B ERGRIE 2,273 5,653
Deposits and prepayments (note (f)) &% K T8 708 (ML) 59,015 60,373
Deposit for acquisition of equity WE—Eaa kAR RS
interests in a company (note (h)) (B EEH)) 15,920 -
77,208 66,026
Representing: =i
Current Bl HA 59,588 63,326
Non-current JEENER 17,620 2,700
77,208 66,026

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(9]

All of the loans and receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year and prepayments are expected to be
recognised as expense within one year or in its normal
operating cycle.

The carrying amounts of loan and receivables approximate to
their fair values.

No allowance for doubtful debts was recorded for both years.
Trade receivables with the following analysis by age presented
based on the invoice date as at the end of the reporting
period:

B 5 -
(a)

(b)

(9]

B B N R W FOA TR I — A K
[l - {8 IR TEH RN — F AR IE
FEERNMAAMN

ER kWA REEELATE
iEE=R

RWEFESEEFGRIREE AT
RNBERRE SR FIRRER
HI2 512 BRIk DA

2015 2014

—B—%H%F —E-mE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR¥ETT

0 to 180 days 02180H 92 187
181 to 365 days 180&365H 27 57
1 year to 2 years 15 225 255 -
374 244

The average credit period for funeral arrangement services
granted to non-funeral services deed customers is 45 days
(2014: 45 days).

For sale of burial plots, the customers can elect to make
payment on a lump sum basis or settle the contract sum by
up to a maximum of 48 monthly instalments. The instalment
receivables will be discounted at an appropriate effective
interest rate.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015

RBEELZHRYE MFEBRERBERY
2EREFEEZFHEERA4ISA (=
T P04 450) -

MEEEMM S TPAEE R
A AR A o BN 0T R R %48
A AEEA Q2R - D B3R
HIZE & BRI KRER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &=

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ¥ 5 R HEMEWHRIE (1)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

There is no credit period granted to customers for the other
services rendered by the Group

Management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary as the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note
32(a).

Included in the balance is an amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of RMBnil (2014: RMB3,616,000), of which are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
as it relates to a wide range of debtors for whom there was
no recent history of default. Management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of the non-
impaired balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Impairment loss of other receivables

Impairment losses of other receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment losses
are written off against other receivables directly.

AT R P at

—E-AF+TA=t—HILFE

PieE - (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(%)

o
0 B+

N2 SRR AR 3 P A B ] -
BERR/BARZSEBRIELE
@%% NG S 2 S
H‘{—HEETEF om °

AEEEERROE—DFEH

g B H
=W D EmRE

Zat
Amm - =
)—H’
l.u
N
@

BB >
>

EE
b
iy
il

Pl

ACHBEEY
# s %WW@HT
TR

H it FE Uy 3R IR 2 i (B 1R

H i e Y8 2 BB R R Y R
BRADAR MW AN EE M % FIAZA]
Y BIERRGR RIBR SN - RULIEST - JR{E
EREEE B E MR RGRIAM -

Movements in the allowance for impairment loss BEBEREEZE
2015 2014
—hE —T—-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARETFT
At 1 January m—HA—H 1,009 1,009
Impairment loss recognised 2R EEE 382 -
Uncollectible amount written off HEE T AT U B 28 (382) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,009 1,009
During the year ended 31 December 2015, other receivables REZ-_T—RAF+=-_A=+—H

of the Group amounting to RMB382,000 (2014: RMB nil)
were individually determined to be impaired. As at 31
December 2015, the individually impaired receivables were
due from debtors with financial difficulties. Accordingly,
specific allowances for impairment loss of RMB1,009,000
(2014: RMB1,009,000) were recognised.

WHFE- $%l2ﬁmEWﬂEAE
#382,0007C (=& — mi ARBZ
T EREEHRBE - R_E—hF
+=-A=+—8" ﬁﬁlﬁﬂﬁzr
W FRIB Ty R 1 B S R 8 2 (B IS A R
8 -Eit BHRECREBEBREEA
R¥1,009,0000T (ZZ—M4F : AR
#1,009,0007T) °
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ¥5 RHEMEURIE (&)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Included in deposits and prepayments are deposits paid
for funeral parlours and funeral services centres, prepaid
hire charge of funeral parlours and funeral services centres,
prepaid agency commission for funeral services and
prepayment for purchase of marble stones of RMB2,700,000
(2014: RMB2,700,000), RMB7,738,000 (2014:
RMB10,486,000), RMB26,606,000 (2014: RMB27,944,000)
and RMB20,283,000 (2014: RMB16,289,000) respectively.

A commission is paid to the agents when the service deeds
amounts were received by the Group. This commission is fully
refundable according to the agency agreements if the Group
are not required to perform the funeral.

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

B ()

()

(9)

ST AR S RIBNRIE A D B E R
LMRERBRLEN RS RiEE
NEERER L ZFANARZ LR
BB ERE ZBNREMAES KB
BEEAEAZERARE2700,000
(ZZ— M4 : AR¥2,700,000
)~ AR 87,738,000 (— & — 1Y
AR #10,486,0007T) AR
,606,000T (ZZT—OF: AR
,944,0007T ) & A K #20,283,000
T — N4 AR¥16,289,000

peti

~—
o“

[ LA B R 745 22 40 SR B G [ X2
1B - fis AN 5% 8] 8 75 12 (1 7R 35 R
M e R BRI i 2R

- I [P N R TS
i

>t
junsl

K

e
°

3t 4% i (B 2 FE Ut 32 55 RE 3R
WEER KRR A REZ BKE
SRR ZREBE DM -

2015 2014

—E-IF —E-mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TTT ARBFIT

Neither past due nor impaired 7 42 480 B YR (B 174 55
Past due but not impaired BEE R R E

Less than 1 month past due B AR —1E A 28 30

1 to 3 months past due mE—EAZ=@A 21 64

Over 3 months past due wHA R e = 18 A 151 95

200 189

374 244

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
various customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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I 48 280 B SR (B 2 e M8 R B S
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(h) Deposit for acquisition of equity interests in a company

2. RS RAEMEIKRITE (&)

(hy WE—RLFERFEGEZERE

2015 2014

—E—RE —ZE—F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTTT

At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 15,920 -

On 8 December 2015, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement (“S&P") with Mr. Wang Hsien Ting
("Mr. Wang”), an independent third party, in relation to a
proposed acquisition of the entire issued share capital of T~
MABERAT ("FEM") at a consideration of approximately
RMB18,308,000 (equivalent to NTD92,000,000).

Pursuant to the S&P, the Group shall pay Mr. Wang
a sum of approximately RMB15,920,000 (equivalent
to NTD80,000,000) as deposit for the proposed
acquisition. As at 31 December 2015, the Group paid
a total of approximately RMB15,920,000 (equivalent to
NTD80,000,000) as the deposit. The deposit is refundable
without interest upon termination of the S&P or used to
settle part of the consideration of the proposed acquisition.

The proposed acquisition constituted, under the Listing Rules,
a disclosable transaction of the Company. The acquisition has
not completed up to 22 March 2016.

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

R-EBE—RE+-ANB KEHHR
BYEZHTERLE ([EhEDRT
v—EEERZE ([EEHEZ]) RS
BRAEZUREL ARM18,308,000
7t (FZ ¥ 4 %92,000,0007T ) W iE
TEMBRAR ([FER]) LB
FTREAR ©

BEBEEH# AEBEKEMTEE
X # AR #15,920,0007T (5
7 7 & #80,000,0007T ) 1 A i 3 W
BEE 2 ERE - R-_ZT—FHF+ =
B=Z+—B AEE&EEIFHA
R #15,920,000C (FHER A
80,000,0007T) E Bl E - L E AR E
B R LR R R B AR B - 8k A] A
R iEmKREEE 2 BHNRE-

BIE LR 2F W EEEERAR
RA—BETHERG BHE-ZT
:gizﬂ —t+Z—H - WEEERNA

22, MHERSE

2015 2014
—Z-hF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREBTF T
Bank wealth management product, R{THIEEIEE M -
at cost LA 1,500 -

Bank wealth management product was issued by reputable
bank in the PRC and there is no fixed or determinable
returns of this bank wealth management product, but
with a maturity of less than one month. Its principal is
not protected. The investment is stated at cost less any
impairment because the directors are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably. The investment
is neither past due nor impaired.

RUTVEEEERATHARENR
78T MRRRTHMEEEERILE
ElE sk A EE M A ¥ BN —EA R
H-ARERLIFRA-HRNEFTAS
BRAKRE 2 R ETRAIFEME &
HIZ AR AEFDRES IR - BRRE
I 48 80 Y OB (E
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23. &R BReERY

2015 2014
—E—hfF —FE—-HF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TT ARETFIT
Cash at bank and on hand SRITRFHEES 98,712 109,086
Cash and cash equivalents in RE R BARRARKRERE
the consolidated statement RemERAZES R
of financial position and the ReEEY
consolidated statement of
cash flows 98,712 109,086

The interest rates on the cash at bank ranged from 0.01%
10 0.86% (2014: 0.01% to 0.88%) per annum.

At 31 December 2015, cash at bank and on hand of the
Group of RMB22,635,000 (2014: RMB9,079,000) were
denominated in RMB and placed with banks in the PRC.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

The carrying amounts of the Group's cash at bank and on
hand are denominated in the following currencies:

RITBEE Z2FFMENT0.01%=0.86%
(ZZE—F:0.01%%0.88% ) °

RN_E—RAF+-A=+—8 KA£H
ZIRITRFERE B ARME22,635,100
T(ZE—WMF: AR¥9,079,000
TL) MARBEFHEL F A B 2 iR
1T ARME HARINE EIR B R HNEE
il K2 45 08 - S 18 R EE IR T i
7Te

REBZRITEFRAS ZFREENT
S EHE -

2015 2014
—E—hfF —T—OF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETFIT

us$ T 404 801
HK$ BT 541 616
RMB ARE 28,063 26,222
NTD etk 69,474 81,086
Euro (“EUR") Bc ([B)) 8 8
VND HEE 222 353
98,712 109,086
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. B 5 B H b FE &% I7

2015 2014
“EB—-1F —TmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Trade payables (note (c)) E 5 e FIE (M) 855 1,714
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 708 % Bt e T 3R IE 5,108 6,482
Financial liabilities measured REER ARG E 2
at amortised cost M%aE 5,963 8,196
Notes: B 5t
(@) All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled (@ FEEZREMENKIBERN—F
within one year or are repayable on demand. ABENERIREEREEE-
(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables by EBIREMENKEZEEREEER
approximate their fair values. FEMEE -
() The following is an aging analysis of trade payables, based on © MUTARBEEREZEMNFIELZSE
the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period: ERBZERRD
2015 2014
—E—-RE Lk
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
0 to 30 days 0%£30H 389 818
31 days to 90 days 31HE90H 196 445
Over 90 days 90B KA 270 451
855 1,714

TELEBEERRLAE —E-HEFFR
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s MRt

25. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

—hF+ZA=t—HLFE

25. R HRIE

2015 2014
—E—hfF T — 04
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TX AREFIT
Advance payments from BB TIEEZ
customers for: SEENE O]
— funeral service deeds (note (a)) —BERERL
(FizE()) 87,133 89,071
— burial plots under development — R R R EE
and tombstones (M 5E (D))
(note (b)) 1,709 1,519
— deferred maintenance income IR E R WA 106 39
88,948 90,629
Analysed as: Al
Current B EA 88,842 90,590
Non-current JEBNER 106 39
88,948 90,629
Notes: AT -
(a) Bau Shan and Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited (”Sino-Life @ f A ﬂ: Z M E/@ Al 1 R EPA S
(HK)"), subsidiaries of the Company, sold funeral services :%;Fffé@%é@?}ggj%g (;E

deeds to customers (“Deed Holders”). The funeral services
deeds are prepaid funeral services packages which mainly
comprise particular types of funeral services at the choice of
the customers to be arranged in future. The Deed Holders
can elect to make payment on a lump sum basis or settle
the outstanding amount of the funeral services deeds by
up to a maximum of 120 monthly instalments. The Group
determines the pricing of the funeral services deeds by
adding a margin to the estimated costs of delivering these
services, after having taking into account of major factors
including the timing of the instruction of the Deed Holders.
Amounts received from funeral services deeds sold are
recorded as receipts in advance. When the Deed Holders have
defaulted payment for two months and do not pay back the
defaulted amounts after the Group's not less than 30-day’'s
demand notice, the funeral services deeds would be regarded
as lapsed and a minimum of 20% of the total sum of the
funeral services deeds or the instalments paid, whichever
is lower, will be forfeited as income. The Deed Holders can
request for funeral services or terminate the funeral services
deeds at any time after the funeral services deeds are sold.
Accordingly, receipts in advance is classified as current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (7&
ZEE &) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated on 17
July 2002 and further amended on 1 July 2003 and 4 July
2007, the Group has to deposit 75% of the gross receipt of
each funeral services deed entered into after 31 July 2003
in financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies. As at 31
December 2014, the Group has deposited RMB33,856,000
(2014: RMB32,963,000) in three financial institutions in
Taiwan.
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ERERL - BEREZOBENEA
BEREHES TEREREFRER
ARZHHEBECBERE - ®Y
BEAEE-SHBYMNFERIER
Z 1208 B D B R BN 2 BER
BRHOFE - ANEFALCERTERAE
(BRZOBEAZEREB) % B
BEIREZERGE 2GR 2
BRFE tmMEERERSROZE
BB EHBEREZOMIKER 2
FIEUFBWRBAR - MRLFEA
B R A SR E A HF$EI%m
TOR30BE N RBMEE AR
B R KA ME@%$£W%Wﬁ¢
K0 W R WA ERG RO AR
120%sk B AF D EI R (A @R EIK
ERE)EARA - RLOFEATRE
HRBERISROEB T AR ZKE
FIRIS AR I ERERERY - it - 78
%22&%@%%#%%$9ﬁ%ﬁ

$ETFEAf77f$tH+tE§FﬁE
IR —_ZEE=FtA—HEZ
TEHFLANBE—FBE JZ““
BEEBEN AEEABRR-Z
ToFL AT HEBITLZENE
FERIE R4 BT W E R A #8258 2 75%
GRREEEREBEEAERS-
RZZE—MF+=—A=+—8 &%
EER-HAaZsmEETRARE
33,856,000 (=T —F: AR
32,963,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

The Group recognised a net gain on termination/lapse of
funeral services deeds of RMB395,000 (2014: RMB35,000) in
"other net gain/loss” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.

(b) It is principally arising from the sales of burial plots and
tombstones under instalment plans and such amount will be
recognised as revenue when the relevant revenue recognition
criteria are met (note 2(q)).

BiEE -

(a)

25. TAUGRRIE (#8)

(&)
(&)

ARERBE_T-HF+_ A
=t— amirw BREFRFIH
ftb U & /JES?@IJ—IE?ME%HW””Z’J
4R R M S F 58 AR #395,000
7T (ZZ— 4 : AR¥35,0007T) ©

AT EEAB O HNFREETH
ﬁiﬂ&:ﬁﬁzﬁiﬁ% MzBEE %’EH%EH
& 1 R B SRR B R SR R W &
(MsE2(q) °

BANK BORROWINGS 26. SRITHEE
2015 2014
—h%F —E—FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETIT
Bank borrowings, secured RITEE 2 EF
Current liabilities piEIR=RE
— Portion of term loan from bank —R—FRIHEER
due for repayment within 1 RITEHAERBD
year 614 594
Non-current liabilities EREAE
— Portion of term loan from bank —R—FEIBEED
due for repayment after 1 year RITEHRERLD 6,952 7,460
Total HET 7,566 8,054

TELEBEERRLAE —E-HEFFR
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At 31 December 2015, bank borrowings were due for
repayment, which are based on the scheduled repayment
dates as stipulated in the respective loan agreements, as
follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

=+ o
BA 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F
26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

—RE+-A=+—BILFE
26. SRITHE (1)

RZZE-—RE+_A=+—1 #H7fE
BERTIEHE (ADEREaER B ®H
WﬁﬁuTaﬂmiﬁ\ﬂi1§}&EHﬂE+ )1553

2015 2014

—E—-4Lf —E—mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREETFT

Within 1 year —F R 614 594
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FRERWER 626 606
After 2 years but within 5 years PRERZEREFR 1,951 1,887
After 5 years RAFE 4,375 4,967
6,952 7,460

7,566 8,054

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants. If the Group were in breach of the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of
the term loans and does not consider it probable that the
bank will exercise its discretion to demand repayment so
long as the Group management continues to meet these
requirements. Further details of the Group's liquidity risk
are set out in note 32(b). As at 31 December 2015, none
of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2014: nil).

All of the bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

None of the bank borrowings due for repayment after one
year contain a repayment on demand clause and hence
these balances are not expected to be settled within one
year and are classified as a non-current liability.

At 31 December 2015, the banking facilities of the Group
are secured by a personal guarantee to the extent of
RMB32,839,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2014:
RMB31,089,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000)) from Mr.
Liu Tien-Tsai, the controlling shareholder and director of the
Company. Such banking facilities were not utilised for both
years.
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RIZETNHBREETHER LRR
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BT IRIT I AAIREA TR BB 2K
BB -AEBERBECRRAE— ﬁﬁ$
BEENHIEE32(b) R T —RF+H
=t—R - AEETEEREHEDAE
BHEMNRE(ZE—HFE &) -

PrBSRITIE B IR B R A FI(E -

Eé—i?éiu REENRITEEHREHE
BB ER IR llrt % ERERRTEN
R—FARRES U BERIFRBE
f&e

R-E—REFE+-_A=+—H & &
B iRITRE 2R AR R RIER
BREFEEIARMTERBEZ LR A
AR #32,839,0007T (#8E 75,000,000
ET)ZEAER(ZZE—TF: AR
#31,089,0007T ( #8 & 75,000,0003
T0) ) c X ERITRMERMEF EHL K
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+—HILFE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the effective interest
rates of the bank borrowings were as follows:

26. SRITHEE ()

RZE—RAFRER-_FE—HWF+=A
—+—H RITEEZEERMENT:

2015 2014
—E—R%F —ZE—OF
Variable-rate FENF 1.88% 1.90%

Bank borrowings of RMB7,566,000 (2014: RMB8,054,000)
denominated in NTD were secured by the freehold land
and buildings in Taiwan with total carrying amount of
RMB17,034,000 (2014: RMB17,462,000) (note 14(d)).

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

IRITEE ARM7,566,0007T ( —Z—1
&F: AR¥8,054,0007T) JhAFT & 5t
B WAREB B KAERIMRIETF
SR E A ARE17,034,000T (=&
— N AR¥17,462,0007T ) fE K 48
(BE#E14(d) ) °

27. FEMBKRARAZMER

(@) HAEMBRRAERAZAHHEIA

financial position represents: =k
2015 2014
—Z-RF —T-MF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEF T
At 1 January wn—H—H 1,451 1,748
Provision for the year FEREE
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ —H B MEMEH 2,409 1,141
Under/(over) provision BAFEBREBETR
in prior years (FEBREEE)
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ —F B> ¥MEFR - (532)
— Taiwan Enterprise —REREMER
Income Tax 173 -
Income tax paid during the year £ A E T AT 151 (1,072) (1,147)
Income tax refunded FREREMER
during the year = 242
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 38 BE 1 (1)
At 31 December W+—_A=+—H 2,962 1,451
Representing: &
Tax recoverable B EEE] (7) (8)
Tax payable FEAS I8 2,969 1,459
2,962 1,451

TELEBEERRLAE —E-HEFFR
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27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC with
effect from 1 January 2008 onwards, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or a place
of business in the PRC, will be subject to withholding
income tax at the rate up to 10% on various types of
passive income such as dividends derived from sources
in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong,
a preferential rate of 5% is applied. On 22 February
2008, the State Administration of Taxation approved
Caishui (2008) No. 1, pursuant to which dividend
distributions out of retained earnings of foreign
investment enterprises prior to 31 December 2007 will
be exempted from withholding income tax.

As all of the Group's foreign-invested enterprises in
the PRC are directly and wholly owned by Hong Kong
incorporated subsidiaries, a rate of 5% is applicable
to the calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB2,410,000 (2014: RMB16,772,000) as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 42 of the Income Tax Act of
Republic of China, the net dividend or net surplus
earning received by a profit-seeking enterprise
organised as a company from its investment in
another domestic profit-seeking enterprise shall not
be included in its taxable income. Such exemption is
not applicable for investment in foreign profit-seeking
enterprise, which is subject to income tax at the rate
of 17%.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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27. ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬂiﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬂ

(b)

REBRELERIEEE

H-ZETN\F—A—H REP
Bl ZEPTISHLE - WIETEA B AL
SRR B & S B S TE AR B R A Bk
BEEEMMEEERANIEE
BB 7E A B K 37 Bk AR S 2 B M 26
BHEZIEERDGE ARSER
BA (FlnREFBEZEE )
LR IE10% .2 B R BUMTEINFL -
TRBEBEMA L 2 IESE - T
Bz EEFEAE% - BRHEE
PR-ZEZNF_A_-+_Hi#t
AT BE(2008)F 155 - It - INE
TER-_ZTETLFF_A=1—
ARl 2 REBFELRE DK
1S EFA B S A TR S o

ENAEBRFPRZFTBINE R
¥VYHREESEMERIAHER
AIEEE2ERE FTEEENHC
EAREE5% - ARAR AL
ZEWB AR ZRBBER  WEH#
BT 3% % 0 A K AT RE A A B R 2R
Dk ARG F IS RE D
KRB EFNETFINZELER
18 A R#2,410,0007T (ZE—MW
F: AR#16,772,0007T ) 1F
fo

aE RIEPERBMAERES
F2fF NABAEAZENET
PREARENEM S —HEFN D
EMESHREFREAAKATN
R AR ARRBUA - BRE
RHeALTERNENIEFFBE
HIRE R ERENAEHEES
17% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
(Continued)
As one of the Group’s subsidiaries, being a foreign
profit-seeking enterprise, is directly and wholly-
owned by a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan, a rate
of 17% is applicable to the calculation of the income
tax. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of the retained profits of RMB7,567,000 (2014:
RMB5,926,000) as the Company controls the dividend
policy of this subsidiary and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 4 of Standards of Withholding
Rates for Various Incomes issued by Ministry of
Finance of Republic of China, the net dividends or
profit distributed to a profit seeking enterprise having
its head office outside the territory of the Republic
of China from investment in an enterprise within the
territory of the Republic of China shall be withheld at a
rate of 20% of the amount distributed.

As one of the Group's subsidiary operates within
the territory of the Republic of China having its
head office outside the territory of the Republic of
China, a rate of 20% is applicable to the calculation
of this withholding tax. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
as the subsidiary has no retained profits that can be
distributed. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the
tax that would be payable on the distribution of the
retained profits of RMB205,000 as the Company
controls the dividend policy of this subsidiary and it
has been determined that it is probable that these
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

27. ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂf%ﬂﬁwzmﬁn

(b) REWBDELEHIREE (F)

HRAEBEESR—FEHNB QAR
BINEERFIME WH—BES
BAMKIHRBAREEZEE
BE HEMSHNERTER
17% o AN B2 H 3% B B8 A
B 2R EBUR - WE HEZE R
PARABERA BARKDIRE - i
RRZE YV BRERE D IRRE &
FIRATIMZEEREARE
7,567,000 (ZE—HF: AR
#%5,926,0007T ) 1 H B -

5/ RIEPERBEMBEEM
GRS VCIEC Bl E e A S
BMFREENPERBEINE
MNEXRARERPERBEBEAN
EEMESHREIENFRE
B 7RIR P 7 IR R BR H920% 1E 1 T8
e

RS EE R B QEE
FERBEBEANEXREERFTERR
RPERBEREI S EERE
T8 8 38 AR R /520% - AR
2 A 3 4 A 3 R B AR B g -
BT AREBEE-_T—AF+=A
St HLEFEZEAMBHRE
FFHELCH ARG - RBEE-F
—ME+TZA=t—BLFE"
AR AN AR I 2 P B A B 2 BX
BIR - B HEEN % E F A KR
BEERAI R RE DK - MIAL AR
B mER D IRRE E BT
S 2 BIE AR #205,0007T1EH
EAETR B R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F
27.

28.

G Mt

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB23,839,000 (2014: RMB23,764,000)
available for offset against future profits. Other than
tax losses amounting to RMB16,329,000 (2014:
RMB16,932,000) that would be expiring from 5 years
through 10 years pursuant to the relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan, the
remainder at the end of the reporting period can be
carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

—HEFT A=t BLFE
27. GEMEBRRARAZMEBR

(#&)

() REBRELEBIEBEE
R-_ZE—RFEF+-_/=+—8"
REBzABARIEBEEEARE
23,839,0007T (= ZE—HF: AR
#523,764,0007T ) 7] F3 LA §8 7K 5K
A BRARIE AR - M kA ER
HA KRB EBRSEI0FFHK
FRIEE 1B AR % 16,329,0007T (=
T—FE: AR 6, 932 ,0007T)
G R BRR 2 FIRRER 5 AT AR BR
RS o« AR ACH FI| 2 SRR
AR - M ESL IR EE B M ERIE

PROVISIONS 28. Bfs

2015 2014
—E—hfF —ET—MF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREETTT

Provision for future costs of REEBREZ

delivering funeral services 5K 3K BX 2 8 0
At 1 January mn—H—H - -
Additional provisions made YEH BEHNE S 1,558 -
Exchange adjustment ME 5 B 4 -
At 31 December W+—_A=+—AH 1,562 -

The Group determines the pricing of the funeral services
deeds by adding a margin to the estimated cost of delivering
funeral services in future, after taking into account of major
factors including the timing of the instruction of the Deed
Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting fee payable to
the sub-contractor for each funeral service deed performed,
the current market conditions and the price of deeds from
sub-contractors. Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of each reporting period to estimate if the receipts
in advance for funeral service deeds can cover the estimated
future costs of delivering funeral services and determine the
need of making a provision in the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. ¥
No. of shares Amount
Eir8 B &8
RMB'000
ARBTT
Authorised: EE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each HIXH{EO.1/#8 T Wil
At 1 January 2014, 31 December RZE—WHFE—A—QH-
2014 and 31 December 2015 —ET—mFE+=A
=t+—HERZZT—HF
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 881,541
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRBEEER:
fully paid:
At 1 January 2014, RZTE—HFE—H—R-
31 December 2014 and —ZET-MFE+=AH
31 December 2015 =t+—RAEkZT—AOF
+=-—A=+—H 742,500,000 69,218

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company'’s residual
assets.

REERARRIRRAE L BRI
FRETRR-FBEEBRERARRZ
BIEEMSHZERSEN-

TRRER ABENRREIEIRZ AR
S\

TELEBEERRLE —E-REFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

30. f&fm

30. RESERVES

(@) The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company'’s individual components of reserves
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

(a)

AEEHES

i Fa =105

D)8

FREHHEINGAERE
B -ARBRESEY 2 FIE
FEEIIMT

FR2E

out below:
Foreign
currency  Share-based
Share translation compensation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
PY:3nect
Rz
BipRE ER R W RHER i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT ARETT AR®TT ARETR
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NE—A—H 220,633 (32,773) 8,004 (97,150) 98,714
Loss for the year AEEBE - - - (4,415) (4,415)
Exchange differences ARBTERRESE L
on translation of ERLER
financial statements - 4,231 - - 4,231
Total comprehensive loss AFEELHBELE
for the year - 4,231 - (4,415) (184)
Equity-settled share-based AIRAERERIA 7
transactions AR zR5 - - 1 - 1
Lapse of share options granted 2 & 5 I 1 2k 2% - - (193) 193 -
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF
‘|’7H =+—H 220,633 (28,542) 7,812 (101,372) 98,531
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—A—H 220,633 (28,542) 7,812 (101,372) 98,531
Loss for the year AEEFE - - - (28,085) (28,085)
Exchange differences BWEMBRREEL
on translation of EREE
financial statements - 8,248 - - 8,248
Total comprehensive loss AEELHBELE
for the year - 8,248 - (28,085) (19,837)
Lapse of share options granted £ %% 1 B % 42 43 - - (59) 59 -
At 31 December 2015 RZE—1F
+-A=+—-H 220,633 (20,294) 7,753 (129,398) 78,694
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE
30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal amount of share capital
and amounts received on issue of shares.

Under the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arose from the business
combination under common control in relation
to the acquisition of Bau Shan during the group
reorganisation in 2007. The merger reserve of
the Group represents the difference between
aggregate net asset value of Bau Shan acquired
and the consideration paid for the acquisition of
Bau Shan pursuant to the group reorganisation.

30. | (#8)

(b) REHERMAE
() RiEE
B B e B AN R 31T
B BEWRIR 2 =5

BRERSFHSQRE(ZE
THEEFAR) ARAZ
BiEEESADIKRTAR
FIRR - M BB AR N X
B RHEARRBAREIRN
ERAREAREEBKBIETE
HARS SO EL B IR -

(i) BOHEE
BHREEIN _ETLFE
TEESHEBRMEEEL
BRAT A RZESIE T 2 %75
BOHFMESL -KAEE M S G
FEEMRECBILZEE
FEARREBEEEEMARM
BREELDNREZEZSR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=—F

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iii) ~ Statutory reserve

(iv)

According to the applicable laws and regulations
in Taiwan, the Group’s Taiwan subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of their net profits
after taxation, as determined under the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to companies established in Taiwan,
to a non-distributable reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches the registered capital of
the respective enterprises. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before the distribution
of a dividend to owners but after offset the
previous years’ losses, if any. During the
year, RMBNil (2014:RMB561,000) has been
transferred to this reserve as determined under
the relevant accounting principles and financial
regulations in Taiwan, after offseting previous
years' losses.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to
appropriate at least 10% of their profit after tax,
as determined under the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable
to companies established in the PRC, to a non-
distributable reserve fund until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
respective enterprises. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before the distribution
of dividends to owners. The non-distributable
reserve fund can be used to offset the previous
years' losses, if any, expand the existing
operations or convert into additional capital of
the subsidiaries, provided that the balance after
such issue is not less than 25% of its registered
capital. The non-distributable reserve fund is
non-distributable other than upon liquidation.
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30. i (#8)

(b) REBHEERARZE

(iii)

(iv)

(#&)
EERE
RIFEEEEREELR
1J$El2é£W%ﬂ
BIRERNER BN A
Al EBERARMBE
B EERARBEBLENZ
10%E A DIkFEES B
EREEBRESHRELE
A ER AL - EIL R E
o2 SR NBRRERE AD
TREERT BREEBAEF
[EE1E (nE ) BIED - RF
A B 8RR e st 2R
LB B BEF
ErEE%E BEBEARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE
30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

(@

(v)

(vi)

According to the Vietman Enterprise Law,
Vietnam subsidiaries in the Group can set their
reserve fund according to the respective Charter.
Under the Charter of the Vietnam subsidiaries,
they are required to transfer 5% to 15% of
profit after tax to set up the reserve fund until
such reserve reaches 10% of the registered
capital of the respective enterprises.

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for freehold land
and buildings held for own use in note 2(e) and
is not distributable.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of non-PRC operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(r).

(vii) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to eligible participants of the Group
recognised in accordance with accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(n).

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to owners
of the Company was RMB91,235,000 (2014:
RMB119,261,000).
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Capital Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for owners and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
owners, return capital to owners, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with other companies in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is total liabilities divided by total assets.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31 December
2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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30. i (#8)

(d)

BEXER

AEBMEEREARZ BERERAE
SEBLIFELE KM AER A
wRE N A E MRS E S
A - WA FFIRARE AN LAUR
DERRLA

REFLRBENGERE  AREE
HERNREBAINZBEESHE
RIEERTHERAAN  BITHBMO K
HEEENRDERE-

MEMBEEAT—F AEELLE
EAELHRAERERNELE.
BEABLRLBAGERNEE
EifE -AEBEEHEERELL
RERFNAEEKE -RZT—RF
RZE—mF+A=+—HZ

BEBBLENT:
2015 2014
—E-1F —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Total liabilities wam 107,008 108,338
Total assets BEE 271,090 283,095
Gearing ratio BEEAMF/LE 39.47% 38.27%

There were no changes in the Group's approach to
capital management compared with previous years.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015

ERFFELE AREHEAE
B2 AN EEE)  ARRHE(
BRI NI B E
IR TERR B ©



31.

32.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &=

AT R B at

—E-hAFFT-A=+—HLHFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 31. BENBSZMBEIA
CATEGORIES
2015 2014
—ZT—1%F —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
Financial assets HMEEE
Financial assets designated —BEALRATHAE
as at fair value through FFABEC U BEE
profit or loss 34,777 45,917
Available-for-sale investment AN ERE 1,500 -
Loans and receivables B K W IR
(including cash and (BERe &
cash equivalents) ReEED) 100,985 114,739
Financial liabilities HEAaR
Amortised cost B 13,529 16,250
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 H¥RBEERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 2FEHE

INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk arising from financial instruments. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties
and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate,
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HERBEHERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

In respect of trade receivables from funeral
services, the credit risk is relatively low as the
receivable for each individual customer is not
significant and the Group generally offer credit
period of 45 days to customers. The Group does
not obtain collateral in respect of its financial
assets.

In respect of other receivables, the Group's
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as for
44% (2014: 0%) and 0% (2014: 64%) of the
total loans and receivables (excluding cash and
cash equivalents) is due from a representative
of a furneral parlour and a non-controlling
shareholder of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
respectively.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the
management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its
debtors’ financial position and condition are
performed on each and every major debtor
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
debtor’s current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the debtor as
well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the debtor operates. The Group does
not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets.
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32. BERREERMBIRZ

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  The majority of the Group's investments are
financial assets designated as at FVTPL which
include mutual funds and unit trusts established
in Taiwan and structured deposits and bank
wealth management product. Given the high
credit standing of investment counterparties,
management does not expect any investment
counterparties to fail to meet their obligations.

(iv)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with good credit
rating.

(v)  The Group does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 21.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to parent company’s board approval. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group relies on its liquid funds as a
significant source of liquidity.

The following tables set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on current rates at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group is
required to pay.

AF(E ()

(a)

(b)

EERR (&)
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. HERBEERMEIAZ
DFE ()

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity analysis for the bank borrowings and
other loan is prepared based on the scheduled
repayment dates.

(b) /)ILEJJ éﬁﬂﬁﬁ (n\a
RITEERHEMERNIHARS
rRTEE N ER B RS -

2015
Z2-1f
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
Bé-F BERE BHRRE
REX R-FR BYREE BIREE ERIF HeRERE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR AE®TR AERTR AERTR AE®TR AERTR AE®TR
Non-Gerivative financial liabilities ~ 3474 3176 & &
Trade payables ERESER - 855 - - - 855 855
Accruals and other payables J?Eﬁ’ B REA
R 5,108 - - - - 5,108 5,108
Bank borrowings iﬁmﬁﬁ - 752 752 2,257 4,640 8,401 7,566
5,108 1,607 752 2,257 4,640 14,364 13,529
2014
e Suif2
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BR—F HBME ARRIR
REX R—FR BAIRMEF EIREF BRLF RENELE KEfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT ARBFT ARBTFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3473158 &
Tradle payables ERESER - 1,714 - - - 1,714 1,714
Accruals and other payables R FREREM
R 6,482 - - - - 6,482 6,482
Bank borrowings BITEE - 742 7 2,225 5316 9,025 8,054
6,482 2,456 742 2,225 5316 17,221 16,250
The amounts included above for variable interest fie)FB) B R BN - s B R 7B 2 fh & T

rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ from those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.
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FEARE ERRIETENBEEZE
TRFAZZRGHEZH-



(©

Notes to the Financial Statements

A5 R P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z T —AF+T-A=+T—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to borrowings at variable rates. The Group did
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
debt obligations.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk mainly
concentrates on fluctuation of market interest rate
arise from the Group's borrowings.

(i)

(ii)

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of
the reporting period.

32. BERREERMBIRZ
LFHE (&)

(0 F=EkE
REEBEEZBRIZEEREZHE
EmEFERR - ANEB I EF
FAPTEMBE T ENE G EEEER
£

AEEZREREFERARES
EFRAEEBEREEZTSZ R
B

() TERFFAKERHREHR
MEEMEREIE

2015 2014
—Z-1F S — U4
Effective Effective
interest interest
Note RMB'000 rate (%) RMB'000 rate (%)
ERFE ERAE
iz AR®TR (%) ARBFT (%)
Variable rate FREHE
borrowings
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 1.88% 1.90%

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates for variable-rate borrowings,
with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group's loss after
tax and accumulated losses by approximately
RMB63,000 (2014: RMB67,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not
change in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analyses above have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points (2014: 100 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2014.

(i) BEEDH
RZB-—RAF+-A=+—
EREEER =P IS
T+ B 10018 £ 25 - T A
EEMBEERTE A
.ﬁzﬁﬁlzwﬁéiﬁaﬂﬂ
2R A £ A R 63,000
T(ZE—MFE: ARE
67,0007T) - 4R & #E &
B 1n T\@I%é EFE AT
B 1 (3R

R ERE ST R RE
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TE o mBD TR N RE
HARARFBZHBITARE
BEEHRFER -RAEE
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BF {6 AR S R 100ME &£ 8 (=
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32  MERBEERMEIAZ
DFE(HE)

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the Executive Directors
monitor the Group's foreign currency exposures and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arises.

()  Exposure to currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through bank deposit denominated in a foreign
currency that is a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is
USD, RMB and HK$.

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated
using the spot rate at the year end date.

(d)

E¥ERE

ZRER B B Al NS SRR -
AR BITESTERAKE ZINE
R AR ETEREEHEKR
) SN R B A/ M 38 v o

(i)

FrE# 2 B B m b
AEEAZNEERBTIE
KB AINEEHERRITIFR
(BB BRSPS KT BE
EAINNERE) - 5/ Btk
HERNERE/ET AR
BRABTTe

TRAVAEERFEHRR
EIAERI ERETNRE B M IASD
ZERFHEZEHEREES
BEMEEZEBER 5
EHME ARESEIIAA
REIR HERNFER
Z BVHRE R E o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

FEHZSPERRE (UARKIIT)

2015 2014
ZE-1f —T-mE

uss RMB HK$ Us$ RMB HK$

BT AE% BT e AR% BT

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000

T i i Fr i Fr

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 13 5,428 - 183 17,143 50

Trade and other payables BAREMERFTE - - (1,280) - - (1316)
Net exposure arising from recognised BREERBEMESLZ

assets and liabilities BkEFE 13 5,428 (1,280) 183 17,143 (1,266)

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(i)

A5 R P vt

—E-hAFFT-A=+—HLEHFE

32. BERREERMBIRZ
LFHE (&)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) ErmRMK (E)
Sensitivity analysis (i) SEEZHT
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRINEERERRERE
change in the Group's loss after taxation EESEATECEXRNZA
(and accumulated losses) that would arise if HHB R EREME
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has Hoth @ BB 5 A 215
significant exposure at the end of the reporting T REEZBRBIEEE
period had changed at that date, assuming (RZFER) BeEE B
all other risk variables remained constant. In R - mE 2RRK
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged P TT R IR T B B IR K g
rate between the HK$ and the US$ would ’;\I%TEFL/EEZTH—JETE
be materially unaffected by any changes in BEgMIHERTE
movement in value of the US$ against HK$.
2015 2014
—Z-1% M
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/
in foreign decrease in decrease in in foreign decrease in decrease in
exchange loss after  accumulated exchange loss after  accumulated
rates taxation losses rates taxation osses
EfL#t/ BRRESR RitEH EXtf/  REGEEE 2:E1B
(TH&) (8m) /&S (8B) /&P (T%)  (#m)/Ry (&) /B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTE  AERTRT ARBTT  AREFR
uss e 5.6% 1 1 2.5% 4 4
(5.6%) (1) (1) (2.5%) (4) (4)
RMB NEE 5.6% 316 316 25% 36 364
(5.6%) (316) (316) (2.5%) (364) (364)
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HERBEHRMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(e)

@

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into
RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure these
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

The Group’s mutual funds and unit trusts are
established in Taiwan, which principal assets consist
of local and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds
and equity securities listed in Taiwan and other foreign
stock markets and structured deposits.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

If the prices of the financial assets designated as at
FVTPL had been 10% (2014: 10%) lower/higher, loss
for the year and accumulated loss would increase by
RMB3,185,000 (2014: RMB3,275,000) for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to the Executive
Directors and the audit committee. A valuation report
with analysis of changes in fair value measurement
is prepared by the team at each interim and annual
reporting date, and is reviewed and approved by the
Executive Directors. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the Executive Directors and the audit
committee is held twice a year, to coincide with the
reporting dates.

AT R P at

—E-AFFT-A=+—HLHFE

32. BERREERMBIRZ
SFHE (&)

(e) ﬁ*ﬁﬂ[@ (%)

L‘AT@S(@E’“TEE*E%FB“&:‘EHJ%
RATASR 2w R E RN E

)ED

WIEE R AT EFABR 2
BEZERRD EN0% (=
T—MUF :10%) ' QI RNEE 2 F
NEE R ZFTBEFEmARKE
3,185,0007C (ZE—MF: AR
¥3,275,0007T) © It Th R FETE
BIEAFEFABGEZHBEEE
2N EREESAHY -

HBEEREBEZ A FETE

AEEA AR BFRETRN
EFX - SR T AgETTIAE - % E
BERARNTEEREZZES
BE - ZEER R RFERS
AHRELERS  ERAFER
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HERBEHRMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DFE(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

AFEHE

(f) Fair value measurements (f)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2015 categorised into
RZB-EF+ZAZ+-BH

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2014 categorised into
RZZ-WEF=A=+—AH

AFEHERES AFEFENRA
Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZ-1% RZZ-mE
+ZA TR
=t+-H =+-H
HATE - gt #ZR HATE £-B - £-FE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTE ABRRTRT AR®TR ARWTRE ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%TR
Asset HE
Financial assets designated as at FVIPL ~ #57E A A FEA
BacBAE 34,177 34,777 - - 45917 35917 10,000 -

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
there were no transfer between instrument in Level 1
and Level 2 or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers between
Levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Structured deposits are principal protected and only
the interest or yield on the deposit may be affected
by movements in the relevant reference value.
The structured deposits are valued using valuation
techniques with observable and unobservable inputs
principally comprising market interest rate.

Structured deposits are measured at fair value. Fair
value is estimated using net present value of estimated
future cash flow adjusted as appropriate for market
risk (interest rate risk).
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 HERBEERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DFE(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(g) Fair value of financial instruments carried at (9) WHAFEIRZHEIAREZ
other than fair value NEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial NEEIR A AT R 2 BT T
instruments carried at amortised cost are not BEZ7FEEEEAR_ZT—HFR
materially different from their fair values as at 31 —E-MFE+ZA=+—HZA
December 2015 and 2014. FELESAD R -
33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEME LA
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-—Z-—NF+ZA=+—HL
FE
On 29 December 2014, the Company disposed all its RZEBE-—NF+_A=Z+AB AR
100% equity interests in Skyward Fountain Enterprise AILMBTRREHERREEERA
Limited (“Skyward”) to an independent third party at a A) ([RFEI100% [ EER T B E =
consideration of HK$1. Skyward was engaged in investment T REZEHEEBRIREEZER E2
holding and its wholly owned subsidiary, Beijing Xizhou BB AR RGEAE LR AER AR
Baushan Technology Company Limited (“Beijing Xizhou ([HEmsBEB L) B F 20 R
Baushan”) was mainly engaged in provision of consultation BIARS

services in the PRC.

2014
——@mE
RMB’000
AR®BTRT
Consideration received BElKE
Total consideration received in cash and PEUBEeRBFEYMRELSE

cash equivalents —

.
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HEMB AT ()

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control REEFHEZEEREBEDN
was lost
2014
—Z—m@mE
RMB’000
AR®TR
Non-current asset ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% B M 217
217
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H e W IR 8
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELEFEY 613
621
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 838
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEME 2 TFEE
Consideration received ERRE =
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFEAE (838)
Cumulative exchange loss reclassified BREmENHDERERY
from equity to profit or loss ZEE N EE 42
Loss on disposal (note 5) & W as (BEEES) (796)
The loss on disposal is included in “other net gain/loss” line HEBBT AGaBRER [Hilkas
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. /EBFRE]EE -
2014
—S—mE
RMB’'000
AR®BTR
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLARZRERHBHE
Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of DHEBES NESSEYES (613)
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents AR & KB ZEWHFA
Bz RE -
(613)

v
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3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following material related
party transactions:

(@)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the

34. XEMEFXH

AEEDTLAETBRBEBLT ARG

() FEEEAEMS
AEEFZEERBAEMEBREX
NP ARBESR (ST
BIRETHESHES (R

highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as OFff#k 88 ) < FRIALAT -
follows:

2015 2014
bt Sk - —T-EF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%®TR AREFTT
Short-term employee benefits %2 #{& & & 5,883 4,678
Post-employment benefits B AE A 25 29
5,908 4,707

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

Remuneration for relatives of key
management personnel
Remuneration for relatives of key management

Feamst ATE IR (R
#26(b)) °

(b) FTEEBAERE S

AEEFZEBAERB M

personnel of the Group is as follows: wmr
2015 2014
—Z-5fF —E-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR AREBTF T
Short-term employee benefits 52 #f{& E 18 F 386 586
Post-employment benefits BB AR A 4 4
390 590

.
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3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 FEREHTH ()
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions

(i)

(i)

(iif)

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered
into the Trademark Licence Agreement (the
“Trademark Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Tien-
Tsai (“Mr. Liu”). Pursuant to the Trademark
Agreement, Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the
Group on an exclusive basis a licence to use
a number of trademarks and service marks in
connection with the Group's funeral services
business at a consideration of Hk$1,000 per
year.

On 15 March 2013, a renewal deed of trust (the
“Niao Song Deed”) was entered into between
Bau Shan and Ms. Li Pi Hsia (“Ms. Li"), spouse of
Mr. Liu, in relation to the land property situated
in Taiwan at No. 943 in Section Linnei, Niao
Song Township, Kaohsiung County, Taiwan (the
“Niao Song Property”). Under the Niao Song
Deed, Bau Shan agreed that the Niao Song
Property, which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be
registered under the name of and held on trust
by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of ten years
ending on 14 March 2023. Ms. Li has agreed
that she shall act in the interest of Bau Shan in
relation to the Naio Song Property during the
term of the Niao Song Deed.

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing
the licensee, Chongqing Xibao, to lawfully
use the property situated at unit 1404 on
Level 14, Zhongxing Garden, No. 1 Heping
Road, Chongging City, the PRC (the “Licensed
Property”) as the registered office without
the payment of rent or licence fee. The
signed confirmation from Mr. Liu authorising
Chongging Xibao to use the Licensed Property
as its registered office does not limit Mr. Liu’s
personal use, rental and mortgage of the
Licensed Property. There was no revenue or
profit contributed by the Licensed Property
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 as there had been no occupancy of the
Licenced Property during the years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &=

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions
(Continued)
(i) (Continued)
The property licensing arrangement with Mr. Liu
will last until 30 January 2052.

(iv)  Guarantee for an amount of RMB32,839,000
(equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2014:
RMB31,089,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000))
is given by Mr. Liu to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group during the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

(d) Amounts due from directors
Particular of the amounts due from directors, which
are included in trade and other receivables, are
disclosed as follows:

A5 R P vt

—T-AF+-AZt+—ALFE
34. EEMEL X% (18)

(¢ HEMBEERZ2XRS (&)
@iy (&)
BB AT 2 T AT
e —_TR-_F—A8
=t+H8ik-

(iv) Bl A gt AR %32,839,000
7t (#8 & 75,000,000
L) (ZZE—WF: AR
#31,089,0007C (& ®
5,000,000% JT) ) Z 318
REER EAEE=F
—RFERZT—MF+=A
=t BHLEFERTALE
MARRBZIRITRE 2K
o

(d) EBRESMIE
EWEEFA (FIAE S REME
kIR VI EN T

2015 2014

—E—1%F —E—mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETF T

Mr. Kim Eun Back SEELE 20 -

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai 28t e A - -

Maximum amount outstanding during the year is as FARRAEESENTBN
follows: ™~

2015 2014

—hf —E—OF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®TT ARBTT

Mr. Kim Eun Back CEHLE 20 -

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai SNBSS 16,212 -

The amounts are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

The advances to key management personal were for
the purpose of developing new business, particularly
in relation to the acquisition of equity interests in a
company for the business of golden-ager industry and
elderly care business, details of which are disclosed in
note 21(h).

SERIVEER 2B RARENRIE
@

AEBERA BB
RERIES  LHARRERR
EANEREBWE—FAAR 2K
AR A B E R E21()
B -

TELEBEERRLAT —E-HEFFR
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35. OPERATING LEASES

(@)

(b)

The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

35. EEHE

(@)

REBEREBEA

R-F-—RF+=-A=1+—8"
RIFTAIBEEE EHE M AAE
ZARKZEBEE KA 2 2

BERIT

2015 2014

—E—-4Lf —E—mF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREETT

Within 1 year —F R 8,187 8,554
After 1 year but within —FEEAFAN

5 years 31,351 30,410

After 5 years hF% 41,913 48,677

81,451 87,641

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its sales offices and hire
of funeral parlours and funeral service centres. Leases
are negotiated for terms of 1 to 20 years (2014: 1 to
20 years) and certain leases include contingent rentals
which are based on certain percentage of sales and
the PRC consumer price index respectively.

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2015, the Group had contracted
with tenants in respect of part of its office, plant and
equipment and investment property for the following
future minimum lease payments:

(b)

KERETHEAEEREST
HERAZENAABEELEE
BRSO ERN 2 % - T4 2 G 5
EMEA—E-_F+F(=ZZE—MNM
F—E-_4F) BETHOHE
FEORREBEHEERAREED L
MABEHEERIEETE 2R

Hee

REBEE/EEA
R-F-—RF+=-A=1+—8"
AEERELOPAE  BFE K&K
whREMEMEBPITNZKR
REEHEMRBEWT

2015 2014
—Z—hfF —T—MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Within 1 year —F R 209 299
After 1 year but within —FEERFAN
5 years - 202
209 501
None of the lease includes contingent rentals. WEBABIERAEE -
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36.

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015 not
provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

BAEXiE

REBBREARBBEZR_F—0F
T A=t BHRBEITZEAAED

T
2015 2014
“E—-1F —T-ImF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AREBTF T
Capital expenditure contracted EENEREREZ
but not provided for: BEARFX:
— Property, plant and equipment s/ E N e 60 23
— Investment in a joint venture —R—EEErEZRE 6,500 6,500
— Acquisition of equity interests — i — M AR AR
in @ company 2,388 -
8,948 6,523
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37. EHHE

As at 31 December 2015, bank borrowings of the
Group were secured by land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB17,034,000 (2014:
RMB17,462,000).

R-E—RHE+-_A=+—0 K&£E
RITEEREGCERBREAREAAR
#17,034,0007C ( ZZ—PO4F: AR
17,462,0007T ) 2 L RIEFEE A

TELEBEERRLE —E-REFFR
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38. B AT

38. SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, which are

private companies or, if established/incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same
characteristic as a Hong Kong private company, as at

31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

(@ MZE—RFR_ZT—NF+=

A=+t—R -ARBEZHBAF
(BFLARRZ (HREBRINK
3EMARSL) BB EEFELAR
ARBARR 25 8h) 2 BT

Place and date of Issued and fully
Name of incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of operation
ERREI/ BRTRERRAE
GANGE BIUBER B EREs s TERE/EENN
2015 2015 2014
Z§-5f I$-E§ T 0F
Directly held
Bau Shan* Taiwan Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services, sale
29 December 1998 NTD70,452,000 of funeral services deeds and
investment holding/Taiwan
B =) B RERERTY HERERY
—AMNE+ZAZThA 18 %70,452,0007C DORRERR/ 88
Full Spread (China) Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
5 October 2007
bim (B BRAR ik 1AL RERR/ER
TR+ FTALA
Allied Smart Development Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
1 April 2010
SHEBRERAT ik 1T REBR/ER
“T-ZFAA-A
Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and sale
9 August 2010 of funeral services deeds/Hong
Kong
PEES (FE)ERAF ik 1T RERERBR
ZT-ZE\AAA HERBRBRN/BE
Dayrise Enterprises Limited** BVI Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010
ARMEERAE EBRAHE il RERR/LBELEHS
“2-ZFAAT=H 1%
Jing Run Limited** BVI Ordinary US$1,000,000 55% 55%  Inactive/BVI
12 February 2010
RERRAR EERAHE e TER/RRARES
“T-TF-A1=RH 1,000,000
Timeless Surplus (Hong Kong) Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive/Hong Kong
17 April 2012
ik 1AL TER/BR
“R-ZFMATLA

.‘.‘

d
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38. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. (RE AT (#)

(Continued) (@ (&)
Place and date of Issued and fully
Name of incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of operation
31 v BRTRMERRE
HELRER BIBEREH HREF 411 TERE/EENY
2015 2015 2014
Z2-1% CB-R1f T
Indirectly held
RERs
Bao De** Taiwan Ordinary 83.33% 8333%  Inactive/Taiwan
6 November 2000 NTD108,000,000
B ! TER/ 88
#41%108,000,0007C
Ban Shan Consulting Limited** Samoa Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Provision of consulting services/
14 November 2013 Taiwan
BED il fRftARY, Ak
—3-=% %7
T-A+tEA
Chongging Xibao* The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and
19 March 2007 US$8,000,000 investment holding/The PRC
EEHE* HE EMER REBERBER
“ITLEZATAA 8,000,000% T REER/HE
Chongging Xizhou** The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services/The PRC
25 October 2006 RMB300,000
BRHA #i AR RERERS/ PE
—ZRF ARH300,0007
TAZTIA
Sino-Life Eternities Limited** BVI Ordinary US$10,000 78.75% 7875%  Investment holding/BVI
15 April 2010
PEMEGERAR RBRAES il Bk EBRAES
“Z-ZFMATEA 10,0007
Sino-Life Eternities Services Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 78.75% 78.75%  Not yet commenced business/
20 April 2010 Hong Kong
PR ERRBERDF EE %7 WRRE /B
It S 2
MA-TH
Jinhao Enterprises Limited** BVI Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010
SRPEERDF ERENES il R/ ERELES
—2-%% %7
NET=H

TELEBEERRLAE —E-HEFFR

~+
.

167



,‘.‘
d

68

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

38. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. BT (#8)

(@)  (Continued) (@ (&)
Place and date of Issued and fully
Name of incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of operation
EREL/ BRITRBERAK
NGEE BIMER ALY gEx iR TERE/EENE
2015 2015 2014
ZZ-1% ZB-1% —E-pE
Indirectly held (Continued)
MEse(2)
Sino-Departures Limited** Hong Kong HK$5 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
5 December 2011 Hong Kong
RERTEBRAF BB 5B WARE/BA
It 2
+ZARA
Bao Son Life** Vietnam Paid up capital 80% 80%  Investment holding/Vietnam
20 June 2012 US$200,000
Bl il BRBA RERR/HE
“E2-ZERAZ+HH 200,000 7T
HLV Duc Hoa** (note (b)) Vietnam Paid up capital - - Sale of burial plots and provision of
22 June 2012 VND39,750,000,000 cemetery maintenance services/
Vietnam
HLV Duc Hoa** (i (b)) il ARRANEE HEEMRIRY
Sk N 39,750,000,0007C EEBERE/ Ml
A=tzH
* A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise * SNEBERE

** A limited liability company

(b) The Group does not hold any ownership interests
in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based on the
terms of the Contract under which HLV Duc Hoa was
established and controlled by the Group, the Group
receives substantially all of the variable returns related
to the involvement in HLV Duc Hoa's operations and
net assets and has the ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's
activities that most significantly affect those returns.
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38. LT (#8)

The following tables list out the information of
the Group’s subsidiaries which has material non-
controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

(0

TREINAKEZMBRR (HH
EXFERER)WER - TX2
B BEMRERRETEN
NEIRHER S5

2015 2014
—E—1%F —ET—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
Bao Son Life and its BLUEGREMEAR
subsidiary, HLV Duc Hoa HLV Duc Hoa
NCI percentage IR ER A DL 20% 20%
Current assets MBEE 34,054 32,477
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,163 1,165
Current liabilities mEtaE (42,115) (38,657)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - (39
Net liabilities AEFE (6,898) (5,054)
Carrying amount of NCI IR R E A (1,380) (1,011)
Revenue W %5 777 1,808
Loss for the year REEERE (1,751) (2,207)
Total comprehensive loss FHEEIEAE (2,198) (2,164)
Loss attributable to NCI FEPE AR M 2 B (L < B8 (350) (4417)
Total comprehensive loss IR B 2
attributable to NCI FHBEETH (440) (433)
Net cash inflows from KRB &R AFRR
operating activities 204 412
Net cash outflows from WEESIR SR FEE
investing activities (381) (522)
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIREZHEBROHEBERZXH

TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of
the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme"”) was approved and adopted. The
major terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

(a) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group
as incentive or rewards for their contributions to the
Group.

(b) The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
the Group holds an equity interest, including any
executive directors and any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Company, any of such subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; and (ii) any consultants, advisers, agents,
partners or joint-venture partners of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries.

() The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date of the particular option,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as shown in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of
that particular option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the offer date of the particular option.

(d) The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue (“General Scheme Limit").

The total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
year end date.
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. UIRERERBRKCEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any participants in
any twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue at the date of the grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in
writing and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participants concerned for a period of 30 days
from the date upon which it is made provided that no
such offer shall be open for acceptance after the 10th
anniversary of the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme or the termination of the scheme. An offer
shall be deemed to have been accepted by the eligible
participant concerned in respect of all shares which are
offered to such participant when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
eligible participant, together with a non-refundable
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$10 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received
by the Company, within such time as may be specified
in the offer.

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable
starting half year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event
should not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of
the share option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are exercisable
starting one year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event
should not exceed 5 years from the date of grant of
the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in
the circumstances by giving notice in writing to the
Company stating that the option is thereby exercised
and the number of shares in respect of which it is so
exercised. Each such notice must be accompanied by a
non-refundable remittance for the full amount of the
subscription price for shares in respect of which the
notice is given.
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39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIREREEKRNEBERZR

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) % (#8)
(i)  The terms and conditions of the options granted are as (i) EREBEREZERIZIEED
follows: T
Number of
shares issable Contractual
under options  Life of life of
granted period options
BB M 2 W G 1 W
ARTHREBE AREH BHER
Options granted in 2010:
R-T-2FEH BRI
Options granted to directors:
ETEFsBRE:
—on 11 February 2010 6,420,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-ZTF_A+—H —E-ZEN\A+—HZE 106
—E_TF_At+—H
Options granted to employees:
RTEEZBRE:
—on 11 February 2010 11,680,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-R-E-FF-A+—H —E-THE/\AT-HE 10
“ZT-ZEF-A+—H
Options granted to consultants:
BT R B
—on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-ZTF-A+—H B AV s il = 105
—E-EF_A+—H
Total share options 60,000,000
BEREEH
Options granted in 2012:
R-B-—FREZERE:
Options granted to directors:
RTEE2BRE:
—-on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-RZZE—=F—A+H —E=5—-HtREE 55
—ZT—tF—-H+hA
Options granted to employees:
RTEEZHBRE:
—-on 16 January 2012 14,920,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-RZZE—=F—A+H —E=5—-HtREE 55
—ZT—tF—-H+hA
Total share options 16,920,000

BREEE

The method of settlement for the options granted are
by equity. The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 11 February 2010 and 16 January
2012, the dates on which the options were granted,

were HK$1.16 and HK$0.24 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. UIRERERBRMKNEERZE

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) % (#&)
(j)  The particulars of outstanding options at the end of () MBEERZEARITERERES
the reporting period as follows: BT
2015 2014
—Z-1f —Z-mF

Number of Number of

Weighted shares Weighted shares

average issuable average issuable

exercise  under options exercise under options

price granted price granted

Mtz B2

MEEY  ERETRT T RERER AT

TR BB A T1RE BSnr !
Outstanding at the FMEATE

beginning of the year HK$1.09 59,840,000 HK$1.08 62,552,000

Lapsed during the year FRE LXK HK$0.74 (1,052,000) HK$0.85 (2,712,000)
Outstanding at the end of R KITE

the year HK$1.10 58,788,000 HK$1.09 59,840,000
Exercisable at the end of FRATITE

the year HK$1.10 58,788,000 HK$1.09 59,840,000

-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE =%
39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

—HEF+ZA=t+-RALEE
39. LREEHEBRNABER IR

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 5 (#&)
()  (Continued) 0] (&)
Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at & BIR 2 i R e B i AR AT
the end of the reporting period are as follows: RS EARR 2R T -
Number of
shares issuable
under options  Vesting Exercisable Exercise
31 December 2015 N granted  period period price
_ BE R MR _ _
“2-1%+ZA=1+-H ARTROBE BEH fTEs TR
Options granted to employees:
BTEEZBRE:
-on February 2010 8,768,000 11 February 2010 to 10 /-\ugust 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$~1A1_8
“RIE-BF-At+- i ey =K “Z-ZE\A+-HE 11857
“2-TE/IA+A T-z-zE-ft-f
Options granted to consultants:
RTERE BRE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZE-A+-H ZZ-T¥_R+-HE —Z2-Zf)\f+—HE 11857
“Z-ZF7\R+H ZEZEFCAt-A
thions granted to director:
—HERZERE:
- on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$~0A6_O
-RIF-ZF-A+RX —E-ZF-A+/HE 7? —ATABZE 0.60787T
“Z-Z4-A+hH Tt A+ER
Options granted to employees:
BPES zERkE:
-on 16 Januar 2012 6,120,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RZE-ZF-A+1H % ~EE _‘7‘__ L RAEE 0,607 7T
—Z-=f—-R+1H —t&—-A+hA
Total share options outstanding 58,788,000
mATRBRESH
Number of
shares issuable
under options  Vesting Exercisable Exercise
31 December 2014 N granted  period period price
_ ichikd Tt _ _
—2-mE+ZA=+-H ARTROBE BEH frEs TR
Options granted to employees:
BTYEEZEIRE:
-on 11 February 2010 9,020,000 11 February 2010 to 10 /-\ugust 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-Z5_A+-H “E-TF-R[t-HZ “T-ZF)\A+—-AZ 11887
ZZ-ZFEN\ATAH SE-TE-A+-H
Options granted to consultants:
RTERE ERE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZE-A+-H 2T _R+-HE —2-Zf)\f+-HE 118%T
“Z2-ZF\ATH “Z-Z2F-A+-H
Options granted to a director:
BY-—hEFZBRE:
-on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RZIZ-ZF-ATRH —Z-ZF-ATRHEE 72* —ATARBZE 0.60787T
“Z-=4-A+hH T—+¥-A+hA
Options granted to employees:
BYEE BRE:
-on 16 Januar 2012 6,920,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RZE-ZF—-A+1H I ~EE _‘7‘__ L RAE 0,607 7T
—Z-=f-R+1H —t&—-A+HA
Total share options outstanding 59,840,000

HARTTERERERH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+—HILFE

39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. UIRERERBRHCEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2015
had exercise price ranging from HK$0.6 to HK$1.18
(2014: from HK$0.6 to HK$1.18) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 3.7 years (2014:
4.7 years).

The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire ten
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2015, 1,168,000 of 50,668,000 options (2014:
1,420,000 of 50,920,000 options) were exercisable
in the same year of the date of grant with 50% each
of the options granted exercisable at six months and
at the end of the year from the date of grant and
49,500,000 of 50,668,000 options (2014: 49,500,000
of 50,920,000 options) are exercisable over five years
from the date of grant, with 20% each of the options
granted exercisable at six months, and first calendar
date of following four years from the date of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire 5
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2015, all of the 8,120,000 (2014: 8,920,000)
unexpired and unexercised share options granted on
16 January 2012 were exercisable.

% (#&)

)

(%)

R-E—RE+_A=+—8H
RITE 7 BRAEZTEBEN T0.6
BILEINSE T (ZE—UF:
0.6 T 21.188 7T) » I F 5
Flep A HFERRIIF (T —NO
F47F) -

WER-_ZT—FTF-_A+—H
FHEvEREERHBEBETF
BREm - RN_ZE—HE+= A
=+—H"’ 50,668,000 & %
21,168,000 (ZZ — M
% 150,920,000 BB B EH 2
1,420,00017 ) AT A 1 A HA =2
FE17E BFH B RS E
AERFREANSZFITFES0%ZE
BB B - 50,668,00017 B A%
R 249,500,0001) ( — & — Y
% 150,920,000 BB B EH 2
49,500,00017 ) A] AT (1 A HR B AT
FFEMITE - AR BRI E
AERBEENFEEEB ST
#20% 2 B H B AE -

RZE——F—AF+EKRH
MEREEERLBESRAFEE
MR —_E—RAF+-_A=+—
B R-_ZE——F—A+<BE
! #98,120,00017 ( =& — U 4F :
8,920,00017 ) & Ji& i K i R 1T
BRERIHH R TITE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. LIREZEREERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(1)

Granted to director and employees

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on the Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.

5 (#)

(k) BREZLFERRR

(i)

RTFEERES

REB AR LB REMES
ZRBZ A HELERRE
Wtz AFEAE - ERE
P 2 fhst 2 FHER — B
HIEEBRAGE - B
ZANFR/AENZ —IR
WAZH-

2012
—E——F
Fair value of share options RErE B RBRE S A FE
at measurement date HK$0.047% 7T
Share price g HK$0.2478 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$0.607% 7T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted — FEEf)f 8 ( LA — B = HA#E
average volatility used in the modelling EEREAAKAN
under Binomial Option Pricing Model) hnE R E) 50.23%
Option life (expressed as weighted average BEA%AE fFH (LA — T = H
life used in the modelling under the EERXAKAN 5 years
Binomial Option Pricing Model) eI ER) 5%
Expected dividends TEHARR B -
Risk-free interest rate 1= @ b I =
(based on Exchange Fund Notes) (REIINERE S FZE) 0.85%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

39. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 39. UIRERERBRMKNEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

Granted to consultants

The fair value for share options granted is
measured using the market-based approach,
by reference to the discounted cash flows
to estimate the fair value of the professional
fees that should have been paid. The value
was developed by discounting future cash
flows from the services to be provided by the
consultants, taking into account the uniqueness
of the services provided by the consultants, the
historical monthly payments to similar services
provided by the consultants and the service
period, along with other out of pocket expenses.

Up to 31 December 2015, 41,900,000 share
options under the Share Option Scheme are
granted by the Company to the consultants
of the Group which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for an aggregate of 41,900,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the capital of
the Company with an exercise price of HK$1.18
per share during the exercisable period from 11
August 2010 to 11 February 2020.

% (#&)

(k) BREZAFERRR (B)

(i)

RTEH

GiEs et /NS S = DELES
RS EMREAGE UKS
ZHRRBEMENEFTES
NZEXERZAFE-B
B2 ZER PR RS
ZBREE - BRI R
AR5 2 BE 2 A 3R K AR 7S
HR AR M ERMAX &
FIR B S BRI 2R
Bz RREZRERFH -

BHE_T2—A%+ A
=t+—R KARBDAKXE
B 2 [§8 fE % (1 41,900,0001%
FEARRERTEIIE T 2 BERR
ZEEBRERTERBA
R e —ZFF)\A
+—HEE T -_TF—
A+—B /7R - &7
FEER1ISETRES L
41,900,0000% A2 &) f& A AR
FHIEEO. 178 T2 LB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. MERKRAER
2015 2014
—E—hfF —T—MF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
M3 AR®TTT AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBHEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE &R E = 1,918
Investments in subsidiaries LN 102,656 93,302
Intangible assets mAE 2 2
102,658 95,222
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H A fE U BR X 58,976 77,815
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEY 5,594 14,566
64,570 92,381
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEAE
Other payables A E - BR SR | 19,316 | | 19,854 |
(19,316) (19,854)
NET ASSETS BEE 147,912 167,749
EQUITY Ega
Share capital [N 69,218 69,218
Reserves i1 30(a) 78,694 98,531
TOTAL EQUITY TR ABEB 147,912 167,749

v
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

Rt FUER R (& &t

ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group's accounting policies

(i)

(ii)

Consolidation of an entity in which the
Group does not hold any equity interests
The Group does not hold any ownership
interests in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However,
based on the terms of the contract under which
HLV Duc Hoa was established and controlled by
the Group, the Group receives substantially all
of the variable returns related to involvement in
HLV Duc Hoa's operations and net assets and
has the ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities
that most significantly affect those returns. The
directors of the Company considered that the
Group has maintained de facto control in HLV
Duc Hoa and the Group continues to report it as
a subsidiary.

Revenue recognition for sale of burial plots
under instalment plans

The Group enters into contracts with its
customers in Vietnam for sales of burial plots
under which customers are allowed to settle the
contract amount by interest-free instalments.

The Group recognises revenue from the sale of
burial plots when risks and rewards of ownership
of burial plots transferred, i.e. the contract is
signed by the customers, the burial plots are
delivered, and collectability of the contract
sum is reasonably assured. Before a significant
amount of the contract sum has been collected
and the burial plots are delivered, the Group
does not recognise it as revenue. At this stage,
the Group records all payments received as
“receipts in advance”. When significant amount
of the contract sum has been collected and the
burial plots are delivered, the Group records the
full contract sum as revenue and any unsettled
contract sum is recognised as receivables.

() ERALAEEEHBEZERE

Egal
(i)

(ii)

]
BN EE L EFEF TR
BHEE

AEEBTEFEEEHY
Duc HoaZ {E1{a] FT & & #&
WM BIBAEBIEIA
A7 I #EHIHLY Duc Hoa”
ZAER G AL EYER
#e3r 2 E RN 2 B HLY Duc
Hoa% 7% 2 2Bl M F &
B UARARENZTEHZSE
EIFREHFRAFE ZHLV Duc
Hoa( i - KRR EER B
ANEBEHLY Duc Hoa#k
BRI H mAEEEES
HYRAWB AR -

BRI B D FT a1 285
EZi o Wi

AR BB E F A
ERIAK REGH T
FrRIAS% 8.0 B sk = 4
HAaRTHE-

RE TR HE 2 R & B3
B (AEFPEREAR
BEE RN R AERTE
REEZEARTR)E
AEET SHER KA EHH
EzhE N EREHE
ZREBD BRI EMZ
Al NREE A SRR -
HEHEE AEEEKME
W B ) SRR R 8k A [FRUGR
Hl-HKBIEREE 2K
Mo BB NMELD XM K
SEEKERSREHGIER
Rl MATBRGEESR
SRS ERDEUGRIA
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3I R{Est (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group's accounting policies (Continued)

(1)

(iii)

Revenue recognition for sale of burial plots
under instalment plans (Continued)

The directors exercise significant judgement in
evaluation whether revenue recognition criteria
are met. In their evaluation, the possibility of
terminating such transactions due to non-
payment by customers, are taken into account
after considering the local industry practice. The
directors concluded that when 20% of the total
contract sums in relation to sales of burial plots
is received and the burial plots were delivered,
the collectability of the remaining contract sum
is reasonably assured, sales is recognised to
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
amounts of revenue recognised from the sale of
burial plots amounted to RMB736,000 (2014:
RMB1,808,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the receipts in
advance in relation to sale of burial plots before
sales are recognised as revenue amounted to
RMB1,709,000 (2014: RMB1,519,000).

Impairment of available-for-sale investments
The Group follows the guidance of HKAS
39 to determine when an available-for-sale
investment is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than its cost; and
the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash
flow.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were
considered significant or prolonged, the Group
would suffer an impairment loss in its 2015
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE

41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3I R{Es (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

(i)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Estimated impairment of receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2015,
the carrying amount of loans and receivable
included in trade and other receivable are
RMB2,273,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB1,009,000 (2014: carrying amount
of RMB5,653,000, net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB1,009,000).

(b) fhAETFEAMREEZE ZEEZRR
NTRERRERZETEERK
AR i s B K8 K B AR B ]
EEHTEMBFREZEELR
EZREEAEARHAR G
THPAREZHMEZRR -

(i)

(ii)

R EER L E

REBRN S| EHAREA
BB EERBFEEM
B BN R - fin 3E T 7% B E R
E{EA AW E R - B &
EEEEETHENR -&
EXReELBEMREE
BEaErREEE (AR
FEBHERARBEFERE
BRz&EE)F LR
AR o X R SRR TS
REAUBEARTRHHR
RRERBORNIZHEERS
FRIESHEE KABRET
[ERhEEE ZIBEMAR
H-atEEMEER B1E
BUAMGEESREES
B ZBEHRERER I
EEA BN T UG EZ
ERERZBRE-

JEW B 15t B

WA BB RERE ~NEE
BEBERFBERMGT R
BEFEcHEELREERRA
B EERIERF
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ERRF ) BEIR (& 5T R 2R
RERINEME B ER8T
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RIBH Bl g B IRE KR
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ERREMERZKIEZE
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T-NF EFEEAEARE
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3I R{Est (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iii)  Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

If circumstances indicate that the investments in
subsidiaries may not be recoverable, investments
in subsidiaries may be considered impaired,
and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets. The carrying amount of investments
in subsidiaries is reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amount
has declined below the carrying amount.
The asset is tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the recorded carrying amount may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less cost of disposal
and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling prices because quoted market
prices for investments in subsidiaries are not
readily available. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the
investments in subsidiaries are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgment relating to level of sales volume,
tariffs and amount of operating costs of the
subsidiaries. The Company uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount. Including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of sale volume, tariffs and amount of
operating costs of the subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ T —AF T -A=+T—HILFE
41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3l R &5t (&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) HEFFFAPERZEEZRIET

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued) (#8)

(iv) Net realisable value of inventories and (iv) FEREMBIZRKT AR
development and formation costs of burial H9 ] & 5 F 8
plots

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost of completion and
estimated cost to make the sale. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and
the historical experience of selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in customer preferences and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

The Group writes down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable value
based on assessment of the realisability of the
development and formation costs of graves
which takes into account costs to completion
based on management’s experience and
net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. If there is an increase in cost to
completion or a decrease in net sales value,
the net realisable value will decrease which
may result in writing down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable
value. Write-downs are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, the carrying
value of development and formation costs of
graves is adjusted in the period in which such
estimate is changes.

FENAZRFERNER
X BIER T EEMR
SER 2 AT AR R A S &
fAETRAR » % FEEt I ER
ERTRAMEERBLEEE
mABELR HAgEEE
FEFNERHEFHFRE
BRI 1T SRB R M AF B B9 7T
BMHREREE - EEE
REREMREMTEZS
fhate

AEEFHEEREREKL
RAZE AR (EPR
BEEEER R TEKK
ARBBERITHRZIHE
FE)  BUHRERER
BRI A EE ] B
18~ ffd 52 Ak B AR 38 0 - 3K 5
EFERD AT RRFER
T e EHEREME R
P2 B A R, 22 L F] B3R %
B-NEEFEFRAED
FRR AR T R R B IR B -
WORL A T R0 8% - B E MU R
1 o H T R A 5T o TR HR B
REMBAER REEME
KIRAR 2 BREEERA
e HIRAE-

TELEBEERRLAE —E-HEFFR

.

183



v

184

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ha= MY 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z =T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3I R{Est (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Depreciation and amortisation

The management reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses charge for the year.

This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of assets
of similar nature and functions and taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation and amortisation expenses
for future periods are adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject to
income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC, Vietnam
and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current tax and
deferred tax provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z T —AF+T-A=+T—HILFE

41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €y R{Es (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) FHEFTHBAEEZEZEEZRR
(Continued) (#8)
(vii) Provision on funeral services deeds (vii) FE1EIRFE A 2 IR

The Group determines the pricing of the funeral
services deeds by adding a margin to the
estimated cost of delivering funeral services in
future, after taking into account of major factors
including the timing of the instruction of the
Deed Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting
fee payable to the sub-contractor for each
funeral service deed performed, the current
market conditions and the price of deeds
from sub-contractors. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period to estimate if the receipts in advance for
funeral service deeds can cover the estimated
future costs of delivering funeral services and
determine the need of making a provision in the
consolidated financial statements.
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €3I R{Est (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(viii) Fair value measurements and valuation

processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
directors of the Company have to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements. In estimating the
fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available
and appropriate valuation technique. Where
market-observable data are not available, the
Group may adopt unobservable inputs based
on their best estimate. Management may also
engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. Management work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The Group uses established the
appropriate valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain
assets. Note 14,16 and 32(f) provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &=
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42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW

STANDARDS

AND

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations'

Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Sale of Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation
Exception’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 i Z T —AF+-A=1T—HILFE

42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2015 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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